
CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED AGENDA OF COUNCIL MEETING  

APRIL 16, 2024  

REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 AM 

This is a proposed agenda which is subject to change by Mayor and Council without further notice. 

ROLL CALL……..FLAG SALUTE……..MOMENT OF SILENCE. 
 

PROCLAMATION:  Retirement of Deputy Police Chief William Etsell 
 

MINUTES: APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF APRIL 2, 2024  
 

COMMUNICATIONS:   
Receive & File: 

JOSEPH BYRNE, RE: Iced-Coffee Beach Concession 

NORTHSTAR ENVIRONMENTAL, RE:  NJDEP Classification/Restriction Fact Sheet, Heston’s Gas 

ATLANTIC CITY ELECTRIC, RE:  Efforts to Include Diverse Suppliers 

CAPE MAY COUNTY MUA, RE:  February 2024 Regional Pump Station Flow Report 

CAPE MAY COUNTY HEALTH DEPT., RE: Strep A Infection Advisory 

ATLANTIC COUNTY MUNICIPAL JIF, RE:  2023 Safety Incentive Program Award ($2,750) 

ATLANTIC COUNTY MUNICIPAL JIF, RE:  2023-2024 Elected Officials Training Program 

BOROUGH OF WEST WILDWOOD, RE: Ord. 619, Land Use Public Hearing, May 3 

CAROL BREISCH, RE: Thank you – Back Bay Dredging Project 
 

 

 

Approve & File: 

SPECIAL EVENT, RE:  Hereford Inlet Lighthouse 150th Birthday Party, May 11 

SPECIAL EVENT, RE:  VFW Memorial Day Ceremony, May 27 

SPECIAL EVENT, RE:  VFW Convention & Parade, June 1  

SPECIAL EVENT, RE:  NJ States Elks Parade, June 8 

SPECIAL EVENT, RE:  American Legion Parade, June 15 

SPECIAL EVENT, RE:  ALS Bike Ride, June 15 
 

APPOINTMENTS: 

Police Dept. 

City Clerk (Lighthouse Staff) 

Recreation Dept. 

Public Works Dept. 

Buildings, Parks & Grounds Dept. 

Beach Patrol 

 

 

REPORTS: 

Various Depts. 
 

ORDINANCES: 

Ord. 1929 (2nd Reading) – Exceed Municipal Budget Appropriation & Establish Cap Bank 

Ord. 1930 (2nd Reading) – Bond Ordinance Capital Improvements  

Ord. 1931 (2nd Reading) – Amending Chapter 200, Construction Codes 

Ord. 1932 (2nd Reading) – Amending Chapter 276 Motel Commercial Zone 

Ord. 1935 (1st Reading) – 2024 Salary Ordinance  
 

RESOLUTION: 

141-24 Authorizing 2024 Budget To Be Read by Title Only 
 

 

PUBLIC HEARING:          2024 MUNICIPAL BUDGET  
 

 

 



 

RESOLUTIONS: 

142-24 Adoption of 2024 Municipal Budget 

143-24 Annual Professional Municipal Clerks Week 

144-24 Celebrating Arbor Day 

145-24 Approve Shared Services Agreement w/ Wildwood Crest for UCC Conflict Inspections 

146-24 Approving Items of Revenue & Appropriation – Pro-NJ Grant Boat Ramp ($507K) 

147-24 Approving Items of Revenue & Appropriation – USEDA Bdwk Improvements ($1.1M) 

148-24 Approving Items of Revenue & Appropriation – NJDCA Bdwk Improvements ($10.2M) 

149-24 Approving Items of Revenue & Appropriation – NJUCF Canopy Resiliency ($15K) 

150-24 Approving Items of Revenue & Appropriation – UEZ Administration Funds ($36K) 

151-24 Approving Requests for Reimbursement – NW Beach Patrol Pension Plan 

152-24 Authorizing Return of Balance of Escrow Deposit (MW of Wildwood, LLC) 

153-24 Authorizing Return of Balance of Escrow Deposit (802 NY Ave, LLC) 

154-24 Issuance of Amusement Game Licenses (Norris) 

155-24 Approving ABC Place-to-Place Transfer 201 Olde NJ Ave t/a Tacos & Tequila 

156-24 Authorizing Execution of License Agreement w/ Morey Org. and City of Wildwood 

157- 24 Awarding Contract –Authorized Lead-Based Paint Inspections 

 

VOUCHER LIST/FINANCE: Authorizing payment of all approved vouchers    
    

COUNCIL: 

PUBLIC: 

ADJOURNMENT:  
 

Special Meeting: Wednesday, May 1, 2024 @ 12 Noon at the Lou Booth Amphitheater 
 

Next Regular Meeting:  Tuesday, May 7, 2024 @ 10:00 a.m. 

 

 

 



REGULAR MEETING 
APRIL 2, 2024 
10:00 AM 

 
A regular meeting of the North Wildwood City Council was held in the morning of the 
above date in the City Hall.   The President of Council stated, “The meeting is now 
open.   Adequate notice of this meeting has been provided by posting a copy of the 
notice of the time and place of this meeting on the City Clerk’s bulletin board and by 
mailing and emailing a copy of the same to The Cape May County Herald and The Cape 
May Star & Wave on January 3, 2024.” 
 
ROLL CALL: Present were President of Council Salvatore Zampirri, Margaret Bishop, 
David Del Conte, Kellyann Tolomeo and Joseph Rullo.  Councilman Edwin Koehler 
was present via telephonic conference call.  Mayor Patrick Rosenello and Councilman 
James Kane were not present.  Also present were City Administrator Nicholas Long, 
Solicitor Michael Donohue and Engineer Ralph Petrella. 
 
MINUTES:   On a motion by Tolomeo, seconded by Bishop, that the minutes of the 
regular meeting of March 19, 2024 be approved.  Carried. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
LOMAX CONSULTING GROUP 
RE:     CAFRA Permit Application, North Wildwood 

Ocean Front Improvement Activities 
 
On a motion by Rullo, seconded by Del Conte, that the above correspondence be 
received and filed.  Carried. 
 
LOMAX CONSULTING GROUP 
RE:     NJDEP Freshwater Wetlands Application, 

North Wildwood Boardwalk Improvements 
 
On a motion by Rullo, seconded by Del Conte, that the above correspondence be 
received and filed.  Carried. 
 
WATERS EDGE ENVIRONMENTAL 
RE:     CAFRA Permit Application, 1413 Hoffman 

Canal 
 
On a motion by Rullo, seconded by Del Conte, that the above correspondence be 
received and filed.  Carried. 
 
NEW JERSEY DEP 
RE:     Land Use Permit, North Wildwood Boardwalk 

Access Improvements 
 
On a motion by Rullo, seconded by Del Conte, that the above correspondence be 
received and filed.  Carried. 
 
SPECIAL EVENT 
RE:     Clean Ocean Action 2024 Beach Sweeps, April 

20 and October 19    
 
On a motion by Bishop, seconded by Rullo, that the above special events application be 
approved.  Carried. 
 
SPECIAL EVENT 
RE:     Chrissy Tolomeo Walking the Wildwoods, 

April 20  
    
On a motion by Bishop, seconded by Rullo, that the above special events application be 
approved.  Carried, with Tolomeo abstaining. 
 
 



REGULAR MEETING 
APRIL 2, 2024 

 
APPOINTMENTS: 
 
Fire Department: 
 
Jonathan Ocanto   Firefighter/EMT    Start Work Date 4/13/24 
 
Beach Patrol: 
 
William Ciavarelli   Beach Patrol Chief    Start Work Date 4/1/24 
 
Department of Public Works: 
 
Gary Sloan    Recycling Coordinator    Start Work Date 4/8/24 
 
On a motion by Rullo, seconded by Tolomeo, the above seasonal appointments be 
confirmed. Carried. 
 
ORDINANCES:      
 
ORDINANCE NO. 1933 - On a motion by Bishop, seconded by Tolomeo, that 
Ordinance No. 1933 be placed on its first reading.  Carried. 
 
The City Clerk read Ordinance No. 1933 by its title, known as “An Ordinance 
Amending And Supplementing The Code Of The City Of North Wildwood Regarding 
Curfews For Juveniles Under 18 Years Of Age In Order To Update Said Code To Be In 
Accordance With Current State Statutes”.     
 
COUNCILWOMAN TOLOMEO stated that the 10:00 PM curfew seems too early 
since the Boardwalk rides do not shut down until 12 Midnight. 
 
POLICE CHIEF STEVENSON stated that Police Officers will not be stopping young 
people who are not causing disturbances or creating problems.  This ordinance will 
simply give the Police added resources against the problems that have existed during the 
past few years.  The exceptions that are enumerated in the ordinance provide safeguards 
for any juveniles who are simply on their way home, out with their families, etc. 
 
SOLICITOR DONOHUE stated that a few years ago most municipalities eliminated 
curfew ordinances after a certain court case, but the fact is that there are constitutional 
limitations providing for public safety and peace and good order that allow curfews 
under certain conditions.  There are numerous exceptions in the ordinance.  The Police 
Department has discretion on when to address certain issues.  This is not an 
investigative ordinance; the Police will not be going up and down the Boardwalk asking 
juveniles how old they are, unless the juveniles are violating the law.       
 
On a motion by Rullo, seconded by Bishop, that Ordinance No. 1933 be passed on its 
first reading and published according to Law, the City Clerk called the roll, all voting in 
the affirmative, the President of Council declared Ordinance No. 1933 passed on its first 
reading.  A public hearing and consideration of final adoption of this ordinance will be 
held on Tuesday, May 7, 2024 at 10:00 AM. 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 1934 - On a motion by Del Conte, seconded by Rullo, that 
Ordinance No. 1934 be placed on its first reading.  Carried. 
 

The City Clerk read Ordinance No. 1934 by its title, known as “An Ordinance 
Amending Chapter 138, Beaches, Of The Code Of The City Of North Wildwood 
Regarding The Use Of Tents, Cabanas, Pavilions And Similar Devices”.     
 

On a motion by Rullo, seconded by Tolomeo, that Ordinance No. 1934 be passed on its 
first reading and published according to Law, the City Clerk called the roll, all voting in 
the affirmative, the President of Council declared Ordinance No. 1934 passed on its first 
reading.  A public hearing and consideration of final adoption of this ordinance will be 
held on Tuesday, May 7, 2024 at 10:00 AM. 



REGULAR MEETING 
APRIL 2, 2024 

 
RESOLUTIONS: 
 
# 136-24 
RE:      Supporting The Project Of The Wildwood 

Boardwalk Special Improvement District To 
Replace The Wildwoods Boardwalk Tram Cars 

          
The above resolution was offered by Tolomeo, seconded by Bishop, the roll being 
called, all voting in the affirmative, the President of Council declared the resolution duly 
adopted.  
 
# 137-24 
RE:     Confirming Non-Participation In The 

Construction Office Emergency Building 
Inspection Program Of The Department Of 
Community Affairs Of The State Of New Jersey 

     
The above resolution was offered by Rullo, seconded by Tolomeo, the roll being called, 
all voting in the affirmative, the President of Council declared the resolution duly 
adopted.  
 
# 138-24 
RE:      Extending Grace Period For Interest Payments 

On Sewer Bills 
          
The above resolution was offered by Tolomeo, seconded by Bishop, the roll being 
called, all voting in the affirmative, the President of Council declared the resolution duly 
adopted.  
 
# 139-24 
RE:      Authorizing Return Of Balance Of Escrow 

Deposit (HHN, Inc.) 
          
The above resolution was offered by Rullo, seconded by Tolomeo, the roll being called, 
all voting in the affirmative, the President of Council declared the resolution duly 
adopted.  
 
# 140-24 
RE:      Authorizing New York Life Insurance Company 

As An Employee Eligible Payroll Deduction 
          
The above resolution was offered by Tolomeo, seconded by Del Conte, the roll being 
called, all voting in the affirmative, the President of Council declared the resolution duly 
adopted.  
 
FINANCE/VOUCHER LIST: 
 
On a motion by Bishop, seconded by Tolomeo, authorizing payment of all approved 
vouchers.  Carried.  Pursuant to Resolution #10-24, all bills listed below be paid and 
warrants drawn by the proper officers for the stated amounts. 
 
Check #  Vendor Name  Net Amount 

55962  TREAS.,STATE OF NJ  2,000.00

55963  NJ STATE HEALTH BENEFITS PRGRM  252,760.30

55964  ALLEGRA MARKETING,PRINT & MAIL  3,840.00

55965  Alignment Check  0.00

55966  ADP, Inc.  216.35

55967  Blaney, Donohue, Weinberg PC  4,230.00

55968  CENTRAL JERSEY EQUIPMENT  5,883.51

55969  CHEMICAL EQUIPMENT LABS OF DE  4,889.85

55970  ShoreScan Solutions  95.00



55971  COMCAST  790.00

55972  COMCAST  836.04

55973  Cape May Star and Wave  78.00

55974  Regional Media Inc  440.80

55975  CAPE REGIONAL URGENT CARE  60.00

55976  Delta Dental of New Jersey Inc  8,886.72

55977  DUFFY STRING BAND  1,400.00

55978  Dell Marketing L.P.  1,527.70

55979  EAGLE POINT GUN  6,290.80

55980  ENTERPRISE FM TRUST  25,852.10

55981  FRED M. SCHIAVONE CONSTRUCTION  370,130.61

55982  GLOUCESTER CTY POLICE ACADEMY  100.00

55983  GREAT AMERICAN FINANCIAL SERV  278.00

55984  CAPE MAY COUNTY HERALD  840.16

55985  HOFFMAN EQUIPMENT CO  1,179.51

55986  ISLAND WEED CONTROL INC  8,500.00

55987  PowerDMS, INC  3,339.00

55988  INTERSTATE MOBILE CARE  7,391.00

55989  LEADER PRINTERS  512.63

55990  MGL PRINTING SOLUTIONS  136.00

55991  HRdirect  607.68

55992  GEN DIGITAL, INC.  76.33

55993  Northeast Sweepers & Rentals  1,428.66

55994  SOUTH JERSEY FASTENERS  1,239.52

55995  THE SUN BY THE SEA  300.00

55996  SPICA STEEL, INC  664.74

55997  SCHULER SECURITY INC  1,910.00

55998  SONITROL SECURITY OF DE VALLEY  12,648.00

55999  Shore Fitness at 10th  1,500.00

56000  TACTICAL PUBLIC SAFETY  730.00

56001  Twin Rocks Water  95.88

56002  VERIZON WIRELESS  686.22

56003  VERIZON  7.18

56004  THOMSON REUTERS  235.21

56005  WB MASON CO INC  7.60

56006  XEROX CORPORATION  1,477.62

56007  Dana Gabor Staab  175.00

56008  ACE Telecom Consulting, LLC  1,907.50

56009  Capri Construction Co., Inc.  115,150.00

56010  CAROLYN COLLIER  200.00

56011  KATHERINE MADDEN  62.39

56012  MICHAEL GRISER  103.94

56013  Bernstein Design Group  19,250.00

56014  Landmark Builders  5,800.00

56015  NORTH WILDWOOD BD OF EDUCATION  638,259.00

56016  ERIC NEVIL  56.45

56017  NEHMAD DAVIS & GOLDSTIEN PC  703.00

56018  VAN NOTE‐HARVEY ASSOCIATES  147,998.03

56019  VINCENT DERITIS  64.52

56020  WILLIAMS SCOTSMAN, INC  4,649.30

56021  WILENTZ ATTORNEYS AT LAW  6,979.00

 
 
COUNCIL: 
 
ADMINISTRATOR LONG stated that a number of construction projects are 
proceeding in the City which are scheduled to be completed by Memorial Day if the rain 
ever stops. 
 
PUBLIC:  None. 

 



REGULAR MEETING 
APRIL 2, 2024 

ADJOURNMENT: 
 
On a motion by Tolomeo, seconded by Rullo, that there being no further business before 
Council, we do now adjourn.  Carried.  10:17 AM. 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
This is a generalization of the meeting of April 2, 2024 and not a verbatim transcript. 
 
 















































1

W. Scott Jett

From: RALPH BREISCH <rcbreisch@msn.com>
Sent: Monday, April 8, 2024 8:58 AM
To: W. Scott Jett
Subject: EXTERNAL5th street waterfront Park - boat ramp

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
 
Mr. Jett —Just wanted to say how efficient the contractors were on this project.   I live across the street on 4th and have 
to say they were a great crew —  not much noise, very clean — at end of each day things were cleaned up.  Their exit 
from the lot— well it almost looks like it was when they started.  Kudos to this contractor and to the City for choosing 
them! 
 
Carol Breisch 
Sent from my iPad 



F:\DATA\Risk\WINWORD\Municipal\MEL\2024\EO 2023-24 Training Invitiation.docx

TO: Elected Officials, Fund Commissioners, & Municipal Clerks, ACM, BURLCO, & 
TRICO JIFs

FROM: Paul A. Forlenza, MGA, RMC, Executive Director

DATE:  January 4, 2024 

RE: 2023 -2024 Elected Officials Training Invitation 
******************************************************************************************* 

For more than 20 years, the ACM, BURLCO, & TRICO JIFs have offered our elected officials the opportunity to 
participate in annual voluntary training.  The 2023-2024 Elected Officials Training will take place online via the 
MEL Safety Institute (MSI).  This 45-minute training video provides important information on the challenges facing 
local elected leaders in managing local government risks and tools available to assist our members.  Instructions on 
how to access this training are attached.   

The online training format allows for participation by all our elected officials, and the convenience of completing 
this training when their schedule permits, prior to the May 1, 2024 deadline.  By utilizing the MEL Safety Institute, 
my office will be able to better track the completion of the training and document the credits due to members’ 
assessments.     

Within a week or so of completing the online training, those that complete the course will receive an email from 
my office highlighting the various risk management programs discussed during the training and how they can be 
accessed by our members.  

Please remember that for every elected official that completes the training, their municipality will earn a $250 credit 
towards your municipality’s 2024 MEL Assessment (capped at 5% of your 2024 MEL Assessment).  Also, your 
highest ranking administrative official is eligible to earn this credit by completing the course.  

On a final note, if you attended the Elected Officials Training at the League of Municipalities in November 2023,
you will receive credit for the training.  

Thank you for your attention to this matter.  As always, please feel free to contact me should you have any questions.

File: MEL/2024/Elected Officials Training Tab: Initiation



This seminar is designed to provide a general understanding of the legal principles pertaining to 

Login to LMS

MSI Learning Management System.

Request Training button Home Screen

Management Seminar.

Assigned Home Screen.

Andrea Felip at 856-552-4740
or .

2023-2024
ELECTED OFFICIALS 

RISK MANAGEMENT SEMINAR

ciples pertaining to

























































































































































































































































CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 

 
ORDINANCE NO.  1935 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO BE KNOWN AS THE “SALARY ORDINANCE” FIXING AND 
DETERMINING THE SALARY AND COMPENSATION RANGES TO BE PAID TO 

THE ELECTIVE AND APPOINTIVE OFFICERS OF THE CITY OF NORTH 
WILDWOOD, IN THE COUNTY OF CAPE MAY AND STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

PROVIDING FOR THE RAISING OF THE AMOUNTS THEREOF BY TAXATION 
AND PROVIDING FOR THE TIME AND MEETING OF PAYMENT THEREOF 

  

 BE IT ORDAINED by Members of Council of the City of North Wildwood in the 
County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 Section 1.  The salaries and compensation to be paid to the elective and appointive 
officers and employees of the City of North Wildwood, in the county of Cape May and the State 
of New Jersey, for the year 2024, shall be within the ranges specified herein; said salary or 
compensation shall be paid bi-weekly; said amount; shall be audited by the Chief Financial 
Officer and presented to Mayor and Council for approval.   
 Section 2.  The salary or compensation of any such officer shall be in full for all services 
performed by them; however, some employees may be entitled to overtime pay as set forth by 
agreement with City Council.  Except as otherwise provided for or excluded under the terms of a 
collective bargaining agreement or personal services contract, all full-time officers or employees 
hired prior to March 3, 1998 shall be entitled to longevity pay, based upon a rate of two percent 
(2%) for each four (4) years of service, to a maximum rate of ten percent (10%) after twenty (20) 
years of service.  Longevity will be paid bi-weekly, and shall be included for pension purposes.   
 Section 3.  Full-time Public Safety Telecommunicators, including Trainees, shall receive 
a $350.00 annual clothing allowance to maintain uniform clothing requirements to be paid the 
first pay in December.  All leave (vacation, sick, personal and bereavement) for Public Safety 
Telecommunicators, as determined by City of North Wildwood ordinances or the Mayor and 
City Council, shall be converted into hours utilizing an eight (8) hour day.  Public Safety 
Telecommunicators shall also receive an additional one hundred and four (104) hours of paid 
leave, above and beyond other paid leaves, as a result of their scheduled workweek and work 
shifts (known as the 42 hour day).   
 Section 4.  The salary or compensation ranges to be paid to the below titled officer or 
employees shall be as follows: 
 
Account Clerk/Clerk 2     25,000-50,000 
Alternate Claims Coordinator     1,000 Stipend 
Assistant Budget Examiner     50,000-95,000 
Assistant Superintendent Recreation    40,000-100,000 
Assistant Supervisor Recreation    25,000-50,000 
Beach Patrol Chief      40,000-85,000 
Beach Supervisor/Maintenance    40,000-85,000 
Building Maintenance Worker    20,000-41,500 
Carpenter       27,000-70,000 
Carpenter’s Helper      26,000-50,000 
Chief Financial Officer     55,000-100,000 
Claims Coordinator       3,000 Stipend 
Clerk-Hourly         12.00-32.00/hr. 
Clerk 1        20,000-65,000 
Clerk 2        22,000-65,000 
Clerk 3        22,000-65,000 
Clerk 4        22,000-65,000 
Code Enforcement      10.00-18.00/hr. 
Community Rating System Coordinator     10,000-20,000 
Confidential Assistant to the Mayor    25,000-95,000 
Construction/Fire/Zoning Official    95,000-195,000 
Council Members        8,500-15,000 
Deputy CFO(CMFO)/Purchasing Agent   70,000-140,000 
Deputy Fire Chief                                                 75,000-150,000 
Deputy Municipal Clerk (RMC)    40,000-75,000 
Deputy Municipal Court Administrator   30,000-70,000 
Deputy Police Chief                  80,000-165,000     
Deputy Tax Assessor (CTA)     40,000-60,000 
Deputy Tax Collector (CTC)     35,000-70,000 



Electrician       29,000-65,000 
Electrician/Traffic Maintenance    29,000-65,000 
Electrician’s Helper      26,000-50,000 
Equipment Operator      29,000-65,000 
Field Representative Property Improvement     12.00-120.00/hr. 
Fire Chief                 85,000-180,000 
Fire Captain       60,000-115,000 
Fire Fighter and/or EMT-Hourly    12.00-25.00/hr. 
Fire Fighter/EMT      35,000-102,000 
Fire Official/Housing Inspector    40,000-80,000 
Fire Safety Inspector-Hourly       12.00-30.00/hr. 
Heavy Equipment Operator     33,500-70,000 
Housing and Zoning Inspector (PT)    2,000-20,000 
Laborer-Hourly       12.00-20.00/hr. 
Laborer 1       24,000-45,000 
Laborer 2       25,000-48,000 
Maintenance Repairer                                                             26,000-50,000 
Maintenance Repairer (Grounds)    23,000-50,000 
Mayor        25,000-55,000 
Mechanic       22,000-65,000 
Mechanic’s Helper      20,000-50,000 
Municipal Administrator                30,000-50,000 
Municipal Clerk      75,000-125,000 
Municipal Court Administrator    50,000-100,000    
Municipal Magistrate      30,000-90,000 
Municipal Parks Superintendent    45,000-115,000 
Municipal Prosecutor      20,000-45,000 
Emergency Management Coordinator   3,500-15,000 
Payroll Clerk       22,000-50,000 
Payroll Supervisor      40,000-70,000 
Pension Fund Supervisor     40,000-70,000 
Planning Board Secretary     5,000 Stipend    
Police Captain                 75,000-155,000 
Police Chief                 90,000-180,000 
Police Guard Courts-Hourly       12.00-20.00/ hr. 
Police Lieutenant                70,000-150,000 
Police Officer       30,000-115,000 
Police Sergeant                65,000-130,000 
Principal Planner      45,000-70,000 
Public Safety Telecommunicator Trainee-Hourly   12.00-20.00/hr. 
Public Safety Telecommunicator Trainee   20,000-25,000 
Public Safety Telecommunicator    25,000-65,000 
Public Works Repairer     26,000-50,000 
Purchasing Agent                                                                    25,000-75,000 
Recreation Aide-Hourly       12.00-20.00/hr. 
Recreation Aide      20,000-40,000 
Recreation Commission Secretary    1,000-2,500 
Recreation Leader Sports     20,000-50,000 
Recreation Program Coordinator    35,000-60,000 
Recreation Supervisor      45,000-75,000 
Safety Coordinator (ACMJIF)    5,000 Stipend 
School Traffic Guard        12.00-20.00/hr. 
Seasonal Inspector        12.00-20.00/hr. 
Seasonal Lifeguard        12.00-25.00/hr. 
Seasonal Police Officer (SLEO-1 & SLEO-2)   12.00-20.00/hr. 
Senior Carpenter      32,000-70,000 
Senior Electrician/Traffic Maintenance   34,000-70,000 
Senior Mechanic      32,000-70,000 
Senior Police Records Clerk, Typing    22,000-45,000 
Senior Public Works Repairer    27,000-60,000 
Senior Sewer Repairer     32,000-70,000 
Supervisor Recreation Maintenance    30,000-80,000  
Sewer Maintenance Inspector     25,000-50,000 
Sewer Repairer      27,000-75,000 
Superintendent of Public Works     60,000-125,000 
Superintendent Recreation     50,000-120,000 



Supervising Equipment Operator    40,000-80,000 
Supervising Mechanic      40,000-70,000 
Supervisor Landscaper     25,000-115,000 
Supervisor Public Works      40,000-95,000    
Supervisor Sewer      35,000-64,000 
Supervisor Traffic Maintenance    30,000-64,000 
Tax Assessor       40,000-90,000 
Tax Collector       55,000-90,000 
Tax Collector/CFO      55,000-150,000 
Technical Assistant to the Construction Official                    27,500-60,000 
Timekeeper       20,000-40,000 
Traffic Maintenance Worker     22,750-50,000 
Traffic Maintenance Worker/Electrician   27,500-65,000 
Truck Driver       25,000-55,000 
Violations Clerk      25,000-45,000 
Zoning Officer      25,000-60,000 
    
 Section 5.  The members of City Council of the City of North Wildwood are hereby 
directed to include in the Annual Appropriation Ordinance the sum necessary to be raised to pay 
the said salaries and compensations, and they shall be raised in the same manner and at the same 
time as other taxes are levied, a tax upon all taxable property in the City of North Wildwood, in 
the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey, sufficient to produce the said amounts.  

Section 6.  All preceding Salary Ordinances are hereby superseded and repealed.  
 Section 7.  This Ordinance shall be known as the “Salary Ordinance” and shall remain in 
full force and effect unless repealed or amended according to law. 
 Section 8.  This Ordinance shall be in effect upon its final passage and publication as 
provided by law and shall govern salaries for the year 2024. 
 
 
 
     _________________________ 
     Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 
_________________________ 
W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
Introduced:  April 16, 2024         
Advertised: April 24, 2024          
Hearing/Final: May 7, 2024   
Advertised:  May 15, 2024    



 

 

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1932 
   

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING  
ORDINANCE 1177, AS AMENDED 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 1177, adopted May 19, 1994, has been codified in the Code of 

the City of North Wildwood as Chapter 276, Land Development; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood’s Land Development Ordinance establishes 

specific zoning districts throughout the City which identify and specify permitted and prohibited 

uses, area and bulk requirements governing the construction of said uses, and requirements 

governing overall development within said districts; and  

 WHEREAS, in connection with the 2010 Comprehensive Master Plan Update, the City 

of North Wildwood established the MC (Motel Commercial) Zone in an effort to revitalize the 

City's lodging industry by protecting existing motel facilities from demolition and/or conversion 

to nontransient use and by encouraging the renovation of existing motels to modern standards, 

thereby supporting the City's tourist-oriented economy as well as supporting the Wildwoods 

Convention Center, both as an amenity in and of itself and as an economic generator for the 

region; and 

 WHEREAS, the current MC zones were established from portions of the former R-I/OB-

2 Zoning District at the intersection of Surf Avenue between (generally) 16th and 17th Avenue 

and the portion of the R-1/OB-2 Zoning District between 22nd and 26th Avenue; and 

 WHEREAS, in connection with the establishment of the MC zone, and in an effort to 

provide for new investment and the reasonable use of smaller parcels located within the MC 

zone, the City Council of the City of North Wildwood elected to designate single-family 

dwellings and single-family semidetached dwellings as permitted uses within said zone; and 

 WHEREAS, in light of recent development trends, and recent modifications made to the 

permitted uses within the R-1 and R-1.5 zones, the City Council of the City of North Wildwood 

deems it to be necessary and appropriate to modify the applicable regulations governing the 

development of single-family dwellings and single-family semidetached dwellings within the 

MC zone; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 

North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 

Section One.  The portion of Ordinance 1177, as amended, that has been codified in the 

Code of the City of North Wildwood at §276-24 is hereby repealed and replaced as follows: 

§ 276-24. MC-1 - Motel Commercial 1. 

A. Purpose statement. 



 

 

(1) The purpose of the Motel Commercial 1 (MC-1) Zone is to revitalize the 

City's lodging industry by protecting existing motel facilities from demolition 

and/or conversion to nontransient use and by encouraging the renovation of 

existing motels to modern standards, thereby supporting the City's tourist-

oriented economy as well as supporting the Wildwoods Convention Center, 

both as an amenity in and of itself and as an economic generator for the 

region. 

(2) The portion of the former MC Zoning District between 22nd and 26th Avenue 

is reclassified as the new MC-1 Zoning District.. 

(3) In order to provide for new investment and the reasonable use of smaller 

parcels located within the MC-1 zone, the development of single-family 

detached dwelling units shall be permitted. 

B. Principal permitted uses on the land and in buildings, as defined in § 276-7 

(Definitions and word usage). Multiple principal uses are permitted within a single lot 

or building. 

(1) Hotels and motels, as defined in § 276-7 (Definitions and word usage). 

(a) The hotel or motel structure shall: 

1. Maintain a public lobby/front desk area or registration (check-

in) and information station (front desk) serving hotel/motel 

guests and the general public with in-house staff available on a 

twenty-four-hour basis. 

2. Maintain a linen closet, ice machine and beverage/candy 

vending area, at a minimum, on alternating floors. 

3. The structure may provide the following amenities: restaurants, 

banquet or dining rooms, conference rooms, swimming pools 

and other aquatic facilities designed for use on a year-round 

basis, room service, linen service and other normal and 

customary elements to such facilities. 

4. Be designed with back-of-the-house linen and garbage chutes 

accessing all floors. 

5. Maintain full-time, on-site staff and management. 

6. Maintain a published business phone number and, to the extent 

that such advertising is part of the facilities' business model, 

advertise daily rentals and hotel-like services to the general 

public. 

7. Pay sales tax, use tax and tourism room tax as required by the 

Tourism Improvement and Development District Act (N.J.S.A. 

40:54D-1 et seq.). 

8. Be designed and managed such that each utility (water, sewer, 

electric, natural gas, telephone and cable television) servicing a 

hotel or motel structure shall commonly meter its service to all 



 

 

units within such structure and shall commonly bill such 

service to the hotel or motel management entity. 

(b) Hotels and motels which are converted to and/or owned in the form 

of a Condominium Association, commonly referred to as 

"condotels," consisting of individually owned units within a hotel or 

motel structure shall be subject to the foregoing and the following 

regulations: 

1. Individually owned hotel or motel units shall be defined as a 

privately owned unit(s) within a hotel or motel structure which 

are made available for sale to the general public for investment 

purposes only. These units shall be rented, used, let, or hired 

out for compensation, exclusively for transient occupancy by 

the general public, by reservation or walk-up without 

reservations, on a daily or weekly basis, but in any case, 

without a lease, for occupancy of not less than one night nor 

more than 20 continuous nights. 

2. These units shall not be used for any primary residential 

purpose on either a temporary or permanent basis. 

3. These units shall not be used for any primary residential 

purpose on either a temporary or permanent basis. 

(2) Bed-and-breakfast establishments. 

(3) Retail sales of goods customarily required/desired by the City's tourist visitor 

base, including, but not limited to, sporting goods; hobby and craft items; 

books; photographic and video items; seashore-related clothing and dry 

goods; antiques; artworks; toys; gifts; novelties, notions and variety items; 

jewelry; and like and similar items. 

(4) Retail sales of services customarily required/desired by the City's tourist 

visitor base, including, but not limited to, barber, beauty and nail services; 

specialized day spa services; and like and similar personal services. 

(5) Bicycle, beach accessory and water-sport sales and rental, including sales or 

rental venues (storefronts) for off-site pickup or activity. 

(6) Restaurants, bars and taverns (defined as an establishment serving alcoholic 

beverages and cooked-to-order food which is prepared and served on the 

premises), and specialty food and beverage outlets, such as bakeries, candy 

stores, ice cream parlors and like and similar uses, including those serving 

alcoholic beverages. Such establishments may be enclosed or open-air and 

may serve in a dine-in or (with the exception of alcoholic beverages) take-out 

manner. 

(7) Public parking lots. 

(8) Enclosed active, sports-oriented entertainment/recreation elements, such as 

fitness centers, swimming pools, bowling alleys, skating rinks, and other like 

and similar attractions, excluding amusement arcades. 



 

 

(9) Traditional open-air, active, sports-oriented entertainment/recreation elements, 

such as tennis courts and miniature golf courses. 

(10) Publicly oriented tourist information centers, public safety substations for 

municipal service providers, public restrooms and other public purpose uses. 

(11) Detached single family dwelling units, as defined in § 276-7, pursuant to 

the bulk requirements and standards located within the R-1 zone, as set forth 

within § 276-15D. 

C. Prohibited uses. All uses not specifically permitted are prohibited. 

D. Permitted accessory structures and uses: 

(1) Such ancillary uses as are normal and customary to a permitted principal use 

in a family-oriented, seashore environment, including, but not limited to, 

fitness centers, tennis courts, swimming pools, bathhouses and changing 

areas, lounges, bars (defined as an establishment serving alcoholic beverages 

but not food), and kiosks serving alcoholic beverages. 

(2) Automated teller machines (ATMs), provided that, if accessed from the 

exterior of a building, such machines shall be installed within the wall of the 

building, it being the intent not to permit freestanding exterior ATM kiosks. 

ATM kiosks wholly located and accessed from the interior of a building are 

permitted. 

(3) Off-street parking lots and/or structures attributed to a principal use. 

(4) Fences and walls (see § 276-30, Fences, walls and sight triangles). 

(5) Private residential sheds for the storage of objects by the residents of the 

property, on the same lot and/or parcel, each not exceeding 15 feet in height 

from grade/ground elevation, and altogether not exceeding 150 square feet in 

gross floor area. All residential sheds must be anchored in accordance with § 

276-51B(6)(a) to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the 

structure. Private residential sheds may not encroach into the front yard 

required for the residential use in the zoning district in which it is located. 

(6) Signs [see § 276-24J referenced herein and § 276-40 (requirements for signs)]. 

(7) Permanently installed garages and storage buildings. 

(8) Satellite dish antennas (see Chapter 212 of the Code). All satellite dish 

antennas shall be no larger than four feet in diameter, located on the principal 

structure, or as an accessory structure meeting the accessory structure yard 

requirements stated below and located in the rear yard. For all practical 

purposes, satellite dish antennas shall not be seen from the front facade of the 

building or the street. 

(9) Public utility cabinet(s) not exceeding three feet in height, with adequate 

landscaping screening as necessary and not located in sight triangle easements 

at street corner intersections. It is recommended that public utility cabinet(s) 

be located underground in watertight vaults. Suggested plant species are 

referenced in Appendix A. 



 

 

(10) Handicapped access to structures. A ramp to provide handicapped access 

to structures may encroach into the front, side or rear yard required for the 

permitted use in the zoning district in which it is located, provided: 

(a) The intrusion shall be into the front yard only if it is impossible to 

provide handicapped access to the side or rear of the building 

premises. 

(b) The intrusion into the front, side or rear yard shall not be allowed 

any closer than five feet to the applicable property line. 

(c) The ramp shall be constructed so as to comply with all applicable 

construction standards as to size, slope and other details. 

(11) Public utility lines for the transportation, distribution, or control of water, 

electricity, gas, oil, steam, CATV and telephone communications, and their 

supporting members, other than buildings or structures, shall not be required 

to be located on a lot, nor shall this chapter be interpreted as to prohibit the 

use of a property in any zone for the above uses. All public utility lines shall 

be located in the utility strip if paralleling the street and shall be installed 

underground as practical as possible. 

(12) Solar energy systems (see Article XII). 

(13) Christmas tree sales. The annual sale of Christmas trees is permitted 

between December 1 and December 25, inclusive. 

(14) Public election voting places. The provisions of this chapter shall not be 

construed as to interfere with the temporary use of any property as a voting 

place in connection with a municipal or other public election. 

(15) Outdoor dining with tables on the sidewalk in front of or on the side of the 

use as permitted in § 276-24B(6) as listed above. Outdoor dining shall take 

place on site but not be located in the public sidewalk and/or public/street 

right-of-way. Outside tables and seats may be situated outside of the building 

on the parcel/lot but not in the public/street right-of-way. No operation of a 

business in the MC Zoning District shall be located in such a way that less 

than five feet of paved sidewalk remains for the exclusive use of the traveled 

way for pedestrians, nor shall any such operation of the business or outside 

tables and seats project or protrude into, on or above the required five-foot-

wide pedestrian passageway. 

(a) The hours of operation of outdoor dining shall be limited to the 

hours of operation of the associated restaurant. In no event shall the 

hours of operation go past 12:00 midnight. 

(b) Outdoor dining is a separate accessory use, as it is defined as any 

part of a food establishment located outdoors. 

(c) Adequate lighting shall be provided to promote safe passage of 

pedestrians and for patrons. 

(d) Awnings and/or umbrellas may be used in conjunction with the 

outdoor dining area. Awnings shall be adequately secured. Awnings, 



 

 

including supporting structures, must be within the property line. 

The bottom of the awning shall be seven feet from the ground. 

(16) Temporary construction trailers and one sign not exceeding 50 cumulative 

square feet advertising the prime contractor, subcontractor(s), architect, 

financing institution and similar data for the period of construction, beginning 

with the issuance of a construction permit and concluding with the issuance of 

a certificate of occupancy or one year, whichever is less, provided said 

trailer(s) and sign are on the site where construction is taking place and set 

back at least 10 feet from all street and lot lines. 

E. Permitted conditional uses. 

(1) Accessory apartments, as conditional uses, and the requirements for all of 

those residences shall be the same as for single-family residences within this 

zone. Accessory apartments can be developed as an optional development 

scheme and are subject to the following: 

(a) Conditional accessory apartments that are not located within a 

single-family detached dwelling unit are prohibited. 

(b) Studio apartments are prohibited. 

(c) Conditional accessory apartments in the R-1.5 Zoning District shall 

be limited to one such accessory apartment per the lesser of one lot 

or one single-family detached dwelling unit. 

(d) Conditional accessory apartments shall be no larger than 40% of the 

net habitable floor area of the single-family detached dwelling unit 

in which they are located and shall contain no less than the minimum 

net habitable floor area as required by the City's Affordable Housing 

Ordinance, regardless of whether or not the conditional accessory 

apartment is to be created under the City's Affordable Housing 

Ordinance, as applicable. 

(e) Any increase in the number of bedrooms on the lot in question 

caused by the addition of a conditional accessory apartment to an 

existing single-family detached dwelling shall require compliance 

with the parking requirements of the RSIS (N.J.S.A. 5:21-1 et seq.). 

(f) Entrances to conditional accessory apartments shall be limited to the 

front or side elevations of the single-family detached dwelling unit in 

which they are located. If located on a side elevation, such entrance 

shall be situated within the front 1/3 of the structure. 

(g) All conditional accessory apartments shall comply with the 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and the accessibility and 

adaptability requirements of N.J.A.C. 5:94-3.14. 

F. Area and yard requirements for permitted uses and accessory structures. 

Requirement 

Category Hotels/Motels Other Uses 



 

 

Requirement 

Category Hotels/Motels Other Uses 

Principal buildings, minimum   

 Minimum lot area 10,000 square feet 5,000 square feet 

 Minimum lot frontage 100 feet 50 feet 

 Minimum lot width 100 feet 50 feet 

 Minimum lot depth 100 feet 100 feet 

 Minimum setback1   

  Side yard, each 8 feet2 8 feet2 

  Front yard 10 feet 10 feet 

  Rear yard 15 feet 15 feet 

Maximum building height 49 feet 36 feet from base flood elevation (BFE) or 
3 stories, whichever is less 

Maximum building coverage 80% 80% 

Maximum lot coverage 80% 80% 

Accessory building, minimum   

 Distance to front line N/A N/A 

 Distance to side line 4 feet 4 feet 

 Distance to rear line 4 feet 4 feet 

 Distance to other buildings 4 feet 4 feet 

NOTES: 
1 For the purposes of this section, setbacks shall be clear, unoccupied and unobstructed space 

measured at right angles between a lot line and the building envelope and shall extend from 
grade to sky, except for the permitted encroachments detailed hereinbelow, provided that such 
encroachments do not inhibit the free flow of pedestrian traffic. Setbacks shall be construed as 
minimum distances. Greater setbacks are permitted, provided that the specific distances and 
design relate to the architecture of the subject building elevation, and further provided that the 
setback area is heavily treated with a combination of elements detailed hereinbelow. 

2 Zero-foot setback where adjoining structures are constructed with a common party wall, 
provided that access to the rear of each side of the structure is maintained via a service alley, 
and further provided that the parking requirements for each use are maintained via a shared 
parking or similar arrangement. 

 

G. Design standards. The following design standards have been established in order to 

enhance the City's tourist economic base while creating an attractive and inviting 

pedestrian-scaled environment in the Motel Commercial Zoning District. While this 

chapter does not mandate a specific theme for a development in the MC Zoning 

District, designers are strongly encouraged to recognize the historic setting of North 

Wildwood as a family-oriented seashore resort when selecting a design theme. The 

following regulations shall be treated as design elements subject to variance relief: 

(1) The entirety of all building elevations fronting a numbered avenue(s), such as 

Surf and/or Atlantic Avenue(s), regardless of building height, shall be 

considered a front yard and primary elevation, with facades and appurtenances 

treated accordingly. 

(2) Elevations of all buildings which do not front a numbered avenue(s), such as 

Surf and/or Atlantic Avenue(s), when visible from a public right-of-way (i.e., 

above the height of adjacent buildings, whether present or prospective), shall 



 

 

be considered a front yard and primary elevation, with facades and 

appurtenances treated accordingly. 

(3) All building elevations, including those of accessory buildings, shall 

coordinate form, materials, color and detailing to achieve design harmony and 

continuity. 

(4) In considering facade treatment, the applicant/developer is encouraged to 

include a combination of rich detailing, texture, shadow lines and color. Such 

treatment may include, but need not be limited to: 

(a) Awnings and canopies. 

(b) Building articulation. 

(c) Coping, fascia, soffits and architectural filigree. 

(d) Signage. 

(e) Use of color, light and shadows. 

(f) Other aesthetic features consistent with the Design Guidelines for the 

Wildwoods Boardwalk (Appendix XX), as applicable. 

(5) The above notwithstanding, the main entrance to a development in the MC 

Zoning District need only be located on a single elevation, with facades and 

appurtenances treated accordingly. 

(6) For public parking lots: 

(a) Public parking lots shall be no closer than six feet to any lot line, and 

said area shall be suitably landscaped. Landscaped islands, triangles 

or strips planted with shrubbery and trees shall be distributed 

throughout the parking lot in order to break the view of rows of 

parked cars but in a manner not impairing visibility. 

(b) Any public parking lot open for business after dark will be 

illuminated with lamp fixtures emitting a minimum of one 

footcandle between the hours of 1/2 hour after sunset to 1/2 hour 

before sunrise, except when the parking lot is empty. 

(c) All paid public parking lots shall be paved with macadam or 

concrete with striped parking spaces no less than nine feet by 18 feet. 

The parking lot surface shall be maintained in a clean and level 

fashion. 

(d) Public parking lots shall be licensed by the City of North Wildwood 

and conform to applicable codes of the City. 

(7) For hotels and motels, the following standards are applicable: 

(a) The public lobby, registration (check-in) and information station 

(front desk) serving a hotel and/or motel in the MC Zoning District 

may have its public entrances on any building elevation, regardless if 

whether such entrance fronts a numbered avenue(s), such as Surf 

and/or Atlantic Avenue(s). 

(b) Each hotel or motel dwelling unit shall provide a minimum of 250 

square feet of net habitable floor area for each unit containing one 



 

 

sleeping room and one bathroom and 350 square feet of net habitable 

floor area for each unit containing one sleeping room, one bathroom 

and cooking facilities. There shall be a residency limitation on all 

guests of 30 days, provided that the residency limitation shall not 

apply to an employee living on the premises. 

(c) A permanent on-site superintendent's apartment or living quarters 

shall be permitted within a hotel or motel and shall be included in the 

calculation of the permitted density and the number of units with 

cooking facilities. 

(8) In order to create an attractive and inviting pedestrian-scaled environment in 

the MC Zoning District, long runs of blank, unarticulated or unadorned walls, 

at the pedestrian level or above, are prohibited. Designers are encouraged to 

include both horizontal and vertical building articulation, combinations of 

windows (faux or real), architectural detailing and ornamentation to create an 

attractive and exciting design on all building facades. In furtherance of this 

requirement: 

(a) No exterior building wall shall have an uninterrupted horizontal run 

along a single plane for more than 50 linear feet, and no exterior 

building wall shall have an uninterrupted vertical run for more than 

24 feet. The intent of this regulation may be achieved via structural 

or ornamental treatment. 

(b) Horizontal articulation of rooflines is strongly encouraged. 

(c) While glass elements are permitted as architectural features, blank 

walls and the use of glass curtain wall construction are prohibited. 

(d) The uses of dramatic corporate icons and outdoor theatrical lighting 

are encouraged in harmony with the historic setting of North 

Wildwood as a family-oriented seashore resort. 

(e) Where the exterior wall(s) of a building abut an adjacent residential 

use, the facade shall be heavily landscaped and buffered from such 

residential use. 

(f) Street frontages. In order to maximize the vibrancy of the street 

frontage within the MC Zoning District: 

1. With the exception of ground-floor garage entry/exitways, the 

ground-floor frontage of all structures within the Motel Zoning 

District abutting a numbered avenue(s), such as Surf and/or 

Atlantic Avenue(s), shall be devoted to active uses or shall be 

designed as a decorative streetscape with such treatment and 

features as may be required to provide a sense of excitement 

and vibrancy along an otherwise lifeless facade. 

2. Excessive building runs on the same plane at the ground-floor 

level shall be avoided. A combination of building articulation, 

facade differentiation and other architectural treatments shall 



 

 

be required to provide the illusion of active uses (e.g., 

storefronts). 

3. Where designed as an active use, such ground-floor frontage 

shall include clear storefront glass areas to display the nature of 

the use within. Such windows may be either typical large, 

single panes or multiple smaller panes separated by mullions. 

4. Each individual use shall have its own independent entryway 

from the sidewalk/street right-of-way. Frontage may either 

have identical designs to reinforce the overall design of the 

building or varied designs to express individual uses. 

5. Where designed as a decorative streetscape, such treatment 

may include, but need not be limited to, landscaping and 

hardscaping, benches and other street furniture, decorative 

lighting (both pedestrian and architectural lighting standards), 

statuary and other public art, and like and similar features 

which achieve the stated goal both during the day and 

nighttime hours, for the full 12 months of the year. 

6. With the exception of the decorative streetscape treatments 

described herein, sidewalks shall extend from the building 

facade to the curb. 

7. For the purposes of this section, setbacks shall be clear, 

unoccupied and unobstructed space measured at right angles 

between a lot line and the building envelope and shall extend 

from grade to sky, except for the following permitted 

encroachments, provided that such encroachments do not 

inhibit the free flow of pedestrian traffic: 

a. Awnings,* canopies* and porte cocheres.* 

b. Flag/banner poles. 

c. Bicycle racks,* benches,* trash receptacles* and other 

street furniture.* 

d. Pedestrian walkways, breezeways and atria. 

e. Ornamental architectural features.* 

f. Parking areas and access drives thereto. 

g. Tables for outdoor dining.* 

h. Signage and lighting. 

i. Fences and landscaping.* 

j. Like and similar features. 

(g) Outdoor dining shall take place on site but not be located in the 

public sidewalk and/or public/street right-of-way. Outside tables and 

seats may be situated outside of the building on the parcel/lot but not 

in the public/street right-of-way. No operation of a business in the 

MC Zoning District shall be located in such a way that less than five 



 

 

feet of paved sidewalk remains for the exclusive use of the traveled 

way for pedestrians, nor shall any such operation of the business or 

outside tables and seats project or protrude into, on or above the 

required five-foot-wide pedestrian passageway. 

(h) Setbacks shall be construed as minimum distances. Greater setbacks 

are permitted, provided that the specific distances and design relate 

to the architecture of the subject building elevation, and further 

provided that the setback area is heavily treated with a combination 

of elements designated above by asterisks(*). 

(i) Setbacks shall not apply to vacated rights-of-way. Awnings and 

canopies servicing street-level commercial space entryways may 

extend into/onto a public right-of-way at a distance to the curb, with 

support of said awnings and canopies at the curb and building 

facade. The public right-of-way underneath the awnings and 

canopies shall remain clear. 

H. Screening. 

(1) For hotels/motels, delivery and loading areas, mechanical equipment, garbage 

and recycling storage and similar back-of-the-house functions shall be 

enclosed within the building and shall be screened so as not to be visible from 

any public right-of-way or adjacent property. 

(2) For all other uses, delivery and loading areas, mechanical equipment, garbage 

and recycling storage and similar back-of-the-house functions, functions shall 

be enclosed within the building to the extent practicable. Otherwise, such 

functions shall be screened so as not to be visible from any public right-of-

way or adjacent property. 

(3) Pergolas, trellises or other screening above parked vehicles is required where 

exposed flat roofs are used as parking decks and for mechanical and related 

items. 

I. General Requirements. 

(1) Any principal building may contain more than one permitted use and/or 

organization, provided that the total building coverage of the combined 

activities does not exceed the maximum building coverage specified for the 

district and, further, that each activity occupies a minimum gross floor area of 

500 square feet for uses in the zoning district. 

(2) More than one principal building shall be permitted in all structures. All 

principal buildings shall be separated by a minimum of 20 feet, provided such 

separation is to be used solely for pedestrian circulation. All buildings shall be 

separated by a minimum of 50 feet where any part of such separation is to be 

used for parking or vehicular circulation. However, the separation 

requirements should not be construed to prohibit covered pedestrian walkways 

when the roof or covering of such walkway extends between the buildings. 

Pedestrian circulation zones shall be marked with yellow cross-striping 



 

 

pavement markings and marked with signage as "No Parking or Standing 

Zones" if adjacent to automobile traffic or parking areas. 

(3) All buildings on a single commercial site shall be compatibly designed, 

whether constructed all at one time or in stages over a period of time. All 

building walls facing any street or residential district line shall be suitably 

finished for aesthetic purposes. 

(4) Merchandise, products, equipment or similar materials or objects can be 

displayed or stored outside so long as the merchandise, products, equipment 

or similar materials or objects shall be located/installed in such a manner that 

they do not interfere with or are not located in the sidewalk area to prevent 

free travel of pedestrians. No operation of a business in the MC Zoning 

District shall be located in such a way that less than five feet of paved 

sidewalk remains for the exclusive use of the traveled way for pedestrians, nor 

shall any such operation of the business or outside tables and seats project or 

protrude into, on or above the required five-foot-wide pedestrian passageway. 

(5) All areas not utilized for buildings, parking, loading, access aisles, driveways 

or pedestrian walkways shall be suitably landscaped with shrubs, ground 

cover, seeding or similar plantings and maintained in good condition. 

Suggested plant species are referenced in Appendix A. 

(6) Air-conditioning/HVAC compressor units and emergency electrical 

generators are not permitted in the front yard of any principal structure and/or 

lot. Air-conditioning/HVAC compressor units and emergency electrical 

generators are not permitted in the front 50% of a side yard setback; and as to 

any such equipment that is located in a side yard setback, it shall be screened 

so as to not be visible from any street or adjoining property when viewed from 

ground level. Temporary (i.e., removable) window air-conditioning units and 

temporary ductless air-conditioning/HVAC compressor units that do not 

project more than one foot beyond the existing structure are permitted when 

incorporated into an existing building by way of renovation. Replacement of 

in-kind units, without any increase in footprint size, located in the setback area 

prior to the adoption of this section are exempt from this regulation. 

(7) Landscaping shall be provided in the front yard area and shall be reasonably 

distributed throughout the entire front yard area. Suggested plant species are 

referenced in Appendix A.[5] 

(8) Bicycle racks shall be located on the business site, with a minimum capacity 

of seven bicycles. No locking mechanisms need to be provided. The racks 

shall be located/installed in such a manner that they do not interfere with or 

are not located in the public/street right-of-way and/or sidewalk area. 

J. Sign Requirements. 

(1) General signage standards. 

(a) While not located on the Boardwalk, the signage section of the 

Design Guidelines for the Wildwoods Boardwalk (Appendix XX and 



 

 

referenced and incorporated herein) shall serve as the philosophical 

underpinnings for the standards for signage in the MC Zoning 

District, with specific standards established accordingly 

hereinbelow. All exterior signs shall identify uses, activities or 

functions of the development on which the sign is located. No 

advertising of any product, use or activity outside of the 

development shall be permitted. 

(b) Signage for similar project elements shall be coordinated and 

similarly themed to provide a unifying style. All signs for individual 

uses shall conform in character with all other signs in the complex 

and shall blend with the overall architectural scheme of the district. 

(c) This regulation shall not be construed to mean that all signs must be 

identical or to prohibit unique sign designs where necessary and 

appropriate, but rather that, absent specific justification (i.e., 

branding/themeing requirements for themed retail outlets or food and 

beverage outlets), sign design shall be complementary and 

consistent. 

(d) No vacant signs or sign boxes shall be permitted. Where vacancies 

occur, corresponding signage shall be immediately replaced with 

general development or other appropriate signage. Similarly, any 

sign which falls into a state of disrepair shall immediately be 

repaired or replaced. 

(e) This regulation shall not be construed to include intentional removal 

of sign faces in the off-season, which is a typical practice along the 

Wildwoods Boardwalk. However, upon any such intentional 

removal, an aesthetically treated replacement panel shall be 

employed so as not to leave a visibly vacant sign box. 

(f) All signs must be professionally designed and constructed. 

Homemade-type plywood, coroplast or cardboard signs or home-

computer-generated-type signs are expressly prohibited. 

(g) Sign lighting shall be appropriate for the type and style of sign 

proposed and may include LED, neon or other illumination. 

Similarly, the use of neon lighting or similar material to create 

sculptural logo or iconographic images is encouraged. 

(h) No restrictions are established for interior project signage (defined as 

the interior wall area of a project, whether within an enclosed 

structure or on the inward-facing frontage of a structure internal to a 

project.). Developers are encouraged to establish a creative interior 

sign package consistent with the type and scope of the project 

proposed. 

(2) Project identification signage. 



 

 

(a) Each elevation of a principal building may have one building-

mounted project identification sign depicting the name of the project 

and such other logo or corporate iconography as may be appropriate. 

While the size, location and configuration of such signage shall be 

appropriate to the elevation on which such sign is located, such sign 

shall be located at the uppermost section of the building, but shall be 

no higher than the roofline of the wall on which such sign is affixed, 

and shall have a total sign area not exceeding 10 feet in height 

multiplied by the width of the building elevation on which such sign 

is affixed. However, each such sign may extend to a maximum of 20 

feet in height multiplied by the width of the building elevation on 

which such sign is affixed, provided the sign conforms to the 

conditional signage standards detailed hereinbelow. The bottom edge 

of such sign shall be a minimum of 10 feet from finished grade if 

located on a numbered avenue (i.e., 26th or 25th Avenue), Surf 

Avenue or Atlantic Avenue, but in no case shall it project below the 

awning, canopy or other element on which such sign is affixed. 

(b) In addition to the project identification signs as permitted herein, 

each porte cochere or primary entranceway of a principal building 

may have one building-mounted project identification sign depicting 

the name of the project and such other logo or corporate iconography 

as may be appropriate. While the size, location and configuration of 

such signage shall be appropriate to the porte cochere or 

entranceway on which such sign is located, such sign shall not 

exceed the length of the awning, canopy or other element over which 

such sign is affixed. The bottom edge of such sign shall be a 

minimum of 10 feet from finished grade if located on a numbered 

avenue, Surf Avenue or Atlantic Avenue, but in no case shall it 

project below the awning, canopy or other element on which such 

sign is affixed. The height of such sign shall be 12 feet from finished 

grade, but in no case higher than the awning, canopy or other 

element on which such sign is affixed, and shall have a total sign 

area not exceeding two feet in height multiplied by the width of the 

awning, canopy or other element on which such sign is affixed. 

However, such signage may extend to a maximum of four feet in 

height multiplied by the width of the awning, canopy or other 

element on which such sign is affixed, provided such sign conforms 

to the conditional signage standards detailed herein. In such case, the 

height of such sign shall be 14 feet from finished grade. 

(c) Each principal building may have one freestanding project 

identification (pole) sign per street frontage depicting the name of 

the project and such other logo or corporate iconography as may be 



 

 

appropriate. The location and configuration of such signage shall be 

appropriate to the street frontage on which such sign is located. 

However, freestanding signs shall respect the building setbacks as 

provided for herein. Each such identification sign shall not exceed 

150 square feet in area or 25 feet in height. However, each such sign 

may extend to a maximum of 1,000 square feet in area and 50 feet in 

height, provided it conforms to the conditional signage standards 

detailed hereinbelow. 

(3) Use-oriented identification signage. 

(a) Each permitted principal use within but visible from the outside of a 

hotel/motel may have one use-oriented identification sign mounted 

above the storefront of such use, depicting the name of the use and 

such other logo or corporate iconography as may be appropriate. 

(b) Each individual use-oriented identification sign shall not exceed the 

length of the storefront over which such sign is affixed. The bottom 

edge of such sign shall be a minimum of 10 feet from finished grade 

if located on a numbered avenue, Surf Avenue or Atlantic Avenue, 

but in no case shall it project below the awning, canopy or other 

element on which such sign is affixed. 

(c) Such sign shall be no higher than the awning, canopy or other 

element on which such sign is affixed and shall have a total sign area 

not exceeding two feet in height multiplied by the width of the 

awning, canopy or other element on which such sign is affixed. 

However, each such sign may extend to a maximum of four feet in 

height multiplied by the width of the awning, canopy or other 

element on which such sign is affixed, provided such sign conforms 

to the conditional signage standards detailed hereinbelow. 

(4) See § 276-40 (requirements for signs) for additional standards. 

K. Minimum off-street parking. Each individual use shall provide parking spaces 

according to the following minimum provisions. Where a permitted use of land 

includes different specific activities with different specific parking requirements, 

individually computing the parking requirements for each different activity and 

adding the resulting numbers together shall obtain the total number of required 

parking spaces. 

(1) Hotels and motels shall provide parking as follows: 

 



 

 

(a) Freestanding parking garages or storage sheds are not permitted as 

part of a motel development. Accordingly, all garages and storage 

structures shall be physically attached to the motel. It is the City's 

intention not to permit traditional, open parking decks wherein 

parked vehicles are visible to the public from any right-of-way. 

Window-like cutouts and/or other architectural elements are required 

so as to resemble hotel/motel units while providing for garage 

ventilation as necessary. Parking garages may be attached by way of 

an enclosed walkway, which may be elevated or at grade. Off-site 

parking lots can be located off site from the motel development 

within the block hosting the subject property and the block frontage 

facing the subject property. 

(b) For purposes of this section: 

1. The term "block hosting the subject property" shall mean the 

entirety of the block on which the property proposing the 

expansion of multifamily development units is located; and 

2. The term "block frontage facing the subject property" shall 

mean the (typically 1/2) portion of the block across the street 

from the subject property between intersecting streets. 

(2) Bed-and-breakfast establishments shall provide one space per sleeping room, 

plus two spaces for the permanent living quarters of the owner. 

(3) Permitted uses such as those uses listed in § 276-24B(3), (4), (5) and (8) shall 

provide parking at the ratio of one space per 400 square feet of gross floor 

area. 

(4) Traditional open-air, active, sports-oriented entertainment/recreation elements, 

such as tennis courts and miniature golf courses, shall provide one space per 

each hole, plus one space for each employee, but in all cases a sufficient 

number of spaces shall be provided to accommodate expected needs for any 

permitted recreational use. 

(5) Permitted uses such as those uses listed in § 276-24B(6) shall provide a 

minimum of one space for every six seats, but in all cases a sufficient number 

of spaces to prevent any parking along private driveways, fire lanes and aisles. 

Outdoor seating/dining areas intended for use during spring, summer and 

Room Size 

(square feet) 

Parking Spaces 

(per unit) 

Under 375 1.1 

376 to 800 1.25 

801 to 1,250 1.5 

Over 1,250 2.0 

Plus 1 space for every 10 seats provided in an ancillary restaurant 



 

 

autumn months shall not be considered when calculating the number of 

parking spaces required by this subsection. 

(6) Shared parking use of open parking lots with other permitted uses of the MC 

Zoning District is highly encouraged. 

(7) See § 276-35 (requirements for parking) for additional standards. 

L. Minimum off-street loading; trash and garbage locations. 

(1) The need for, location and design of off-street loading and unloading areas 

shall be considered and determined at the time of site plan review. Off-street 

loading and unloading areas shall take place on site but not in the public/street 

right-of-way. 

(2) The need for, location and design of trash and garbage locations shall be 

considered and determined at the time of site plan review. Recycling, trash 

and garbage loading and unloading areas shall take place on site but not in the 

public/street right-of-way. All solid waste not stored within a building shall be 

stored within an enclosed container. 

(3) Each use must include provisions for the collection, disposition and recycling 

of recyclable materials, including newspapers, leaves, white high-grade paper, 

glass bottles and jars, aluminum, corrugated cardboard, and tin and bimetal 

cans. The amount of recyclable material generated weekly by each use shall 

be quantified and reviewed during site plan review to determine whether the 

storage area to contain a week's accumulation of recyclable material is 

adequate in size and location. The storage area shall be designed for truck 

access for pickup of materials and shall be suitably screened from view if 

located outside a building. 

(4) Recycling, trash and garbage loading and unloading areas shall be marked 

with yellow cross-striping pavement markings and marked with signage as 

"No Parking or Standing Zones" if adjacent to automobile traffic or parking 

areas. 

(5) For hotels/motels, delivery and loading areas, mechanical equipment, garbage 

and recycling storage and similar back-of-the-house functions shall be 

enclosed within the building and shall be screened so as not to be visible from 

any public right-of-way or adjacent property. 

(6) See § 276-44 for additional standards. 

Section Two.  The portion of Ordinance 1177, as amended, that has been codified in the 

Code of the City of North Wildwood is hereby amended to establish new sub-chapter 276-24.1: 

§ 276-24.1. MC-2 - Motel Commercial 2 

A. Purpose statement. 

(1) The purpose of the Motel Commercial - 2 (MC-2) Zone is to revitalize the 

City's lodging industry by protecting existing motel facilities from demolition 

and/or conversion to nontransient use and by encouraging the renovation of 

existing motels to modern standards, thereby supporting the City's tourist-

oriented economy as well as supporting the Wildwoods Convention Center, 



 

 

both as an amenity in and of itself and as an economic generator for the 

region. 

(2) tThe portion of the former MC Zoning District between 16th and 17th Avenue 

is reclassified as the new MC-2 Zoning District.. 

(3) In order to provide for new investment and the reasonable use of smaller 

parcels located within the MC-2 zone, the development of single-family 

detached dwelling units shall be permitted. 

B. Principal permitted uses on the land and in buildings, as defined in § 276-7 

(Definitions and word usage). Multiple principal uses are permitted within a single lot 

or building. 

(1) Hotels and motels, as defined in § 276-7 (Definitions and word usage). 

(a) The hotel or motel structure shall: 

1. Maintain a public lobby/front desk area or registration (check-

in) and information station (front desk) serving hotel/motel 

guests and the general public with in-house staff available on a 

twenty-four-hour basis. 

2. Maintain a linen closet, ice machine and beverage/candy 

vending area, at a minimum, on alternating floors. 

3. The structure may provide the following amenities: restaurants, 

banquet or dining rooms, conference rooms, swimming pools 

and other aquatic facilities designed for use on a year-round 

basis, room service, linen service and other normal and 

customary elements to such facilities. 

4. Be designed with back-of-the-house linen and garbage chutes 

accessing all floors. 

5. Maintain full-time, on-site staff and management. 

6. Maintain a published business phone number and, to the extent 

that such advertising is part of the facilities' business model, 

advertise daily rentals and hotel-like services to the general 

public. 

7. Pay sales tax, use tax and tourism room tax as required by the 

Tourism Improvement and Development District Act (N.J.S.A. 

40:54D-1 et seq.). 

8. Be designed and managed such that each utility (water, sewer, 

electric, natural gas, telephone and cable television) servicing a 

hotel or motel structure shall commonly meter its service to all 

units within such structure and shall commonly bill such 

service to the hotel or motel management entity. 

(b) Hotels and motels which are converted to and/or owned in the form 

of a Condominium Association, commonly referred to as 

"condotels," consisting of individually owned units within a hotel or 



 

 

motel structure shall be subject to the foregoing and the following 

regulations: 

1. Individually owned hotel or motel units shall be defined as a 

privately owned unit(s) within a hotel or motel structure which 

are made available for sale to the general public for investment 

purposes only. These units shall be rented, used, let, or hired 

out for compensation, exclusively for transient occupancy by 

the general public, by reservation or walk-up without 

reservations, on a daily or weekly basis, but in any case, 

without a lease, for occupancy of not less than one night nor 

more than 20 continuous nights. 

2. These units shall not be used for any primary residential 

purpose on either a temporary or permanent basis. 

3. These units shall not be used for any primary residential 

purpose on either a temporary or permanent basis. 

(2) Bed-and-breakfast establishments. 

(3) Retail sales of goods customarily required/desired by the City's tourist visitor 

base, including, but not limited to, sporting goods; hobby and craft items; 

books; photographic and video items; seashore-related clothing and dry 

goods; antiques; artworks; toys; gifts; novelties, notions and variety items; 

jewelry; and like and similar items. 

(4) Retail sales of services customarily required/desired by the City's tourist 

visitor base, including, but not limited to, barber, beauty and nail services; 

specialized day spa services; and like and similar personal services. 

(5) Bicycle, beach accessory and water-sport sales and rental, including sales or 

rental venues (storefronts) for off-site pickup or activity. 

(6) Restaurants, bars and taverns (defined as an establishment serving alcoholic 

beverages and cooked-to-order food which is prepared and served on the 

premises), and specialty food and beverage outlets, such as bakeries, candy 

stores, ice cream parlors and like and similar uses, including those serving 

alcoholic beverages. Such establishments may be enclosed or open-air and 

may serve in a dine-in or (with the exception of alcoholic beverages) take-out 

manner. 

(7) Public parking lots. 

(8) Enclosed active, sports-oriented entertainment/recreation elements, such as 

fitness centers, swimming pools, bowling alleys, skating rinks, and other like 

and similar attractions, excluding amusement arcades. 

(9) Traditional open-air, active, sports-oriented entertainment/recreation elements, 

such as tennis courts and miniature golf courses. 

(10) Publicly oriented tourist information centers, public safety substations for 

municipal service providers, public restrooms and other public purpose uses. 



 

 

(11) Detached single family dwelling units, as defined in § 276-7, pursuant to 

the bulk requirements and standards located within the R-1.5 zone, as set forth 

within § 276-15.1F. 

C. Prohibited uses. All uses not specifically permitted are prohibited. 

D. Permitted accessory structures and uses: 

(1) Such ancillary uses as are normal and customary to a permitted principal use 

in a family-oriented, seashore environment, including, but not limited to, 

fitness centers, tennis courts, swimming pools, bathhouses and changing 

areas, lounges, bars (defined as an establishment serving alcoholic beverages 

but not food), and kiosks serving alcoholic beverages. 

(2) Automated teller machines (ATMs), provided that, if accessed from the 

exterior of a building, such machines shall be installed within the wall of the 

building, it being the intent not to permit freestanding exterior ATM kiosks. 

ATM kiosks wholly located and accessed from the interior of a building are 

permitted. 

(3) Off-street parking lots and/or structures attributed to a principal use. 

(4) Fences and walls (see § 276-30, Fences, walls and sight triangles). 

(5) Private residential sheds for the storage of objects by the residents of the 

property, on the same lot and/or parcel, each not exceeding 15 feet in height 

from grade/ground elevation, and altogether not exceeding 150 square feet in 

gross floor area. All residential sheds must be anchored in accordance with § 

276-51B(6)(a) to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the 

structure. Private residential sheds may not encroach into the front yard 

required for the residential use in the zoning district in which it is located. 

(6) Signs [see § 276-24J referenced herein and § 276-40 (requirements for signs)]. 

(7) Permanently installed garages and storage buildings. 

(8) Satellite dish antennas (see Chapter 212 of the Code). All satellite dish 

antennas shall be no larger than four feet in diameter, located on the principal 

structure, or as an accessory structure meeting the accessory structure yard 

requirements stated below and located in the rear yard. For all practical 

purposes, satellite dish antennas shall not be seen from the front facade of the 

building or the street. 

(9) Public utility cabinet(s) not exceeding three feet in height, with adequate 

landscaping screening as necessary and not located in sight triangle easements 

at street corner intersections. It is recommended that public utility cabinet(s) 

be located underground in watertight vaults. Suggested plant species are 

referenced in Appendix A. 

(10) Handicapped access to structures. A ramp to provide handicapped access 

to structures may encroach into the front, side or rear yard required for the 

permitted use in the zoning district in which it is located, provided: 



 

 

(a) The intrusion shall be into the front yard only if it is impossible to 

provide handicapped access to the side or rear of the building 

premises. 

(b) The intrusion into the front, side or rear yard shall not be allowed 

any closer than five feet to the applicable property line. 

(c) The ramp shall be constructed so as to comply with all applicable 

construction standards as to size, slope and other details. 

(11) Public utility lines for the transportation, distribution, or control of water, 

electricity, gas, oil, steam, CATV and telephone communications, and their 

supporting members, other than buildings or structures, shall not be required 

to be located on a lot, nor shall this chapter be interpreted as to prohibit the 

use of a property in any zone for the above uses. All public utility lines shall 

be located in the utility strip if paralleling the street and shall be installed 

underground as practical as possible. 

(12) Solar energy systems (see Article XII). 

(13) Christmas tree sales. The annual sale of Christmas trees is permitted 

between December 1 and December 25, inclusive. 

(14) Public election voting places. The provisions of this chapter shall not be 

construed as to interfere with the temporary use of any property as a voting 

place in connection with a municipal or other public election. 

(15) Outdoor dining with tables on the sidewalk in front of or on the side of the 

use as permitted in § 276-24B(6) as listed above. Outdoor dining shall take 

place on site but not be located in the public sidewalk and/or public/street 

right-of-way. Outside tables and seats may be situated outside of the building 

on the parcel/lot but not in the public/street right-of-way. No operation of a 

business in the MC Zoning District shall be located in such a way that less 

than five feet of paved sidewalk remains for the exclusive use of the traveled 

way for pedestrians, nor shall any such operation of the business or outside 

tables and seats project or protrude into, on or above the required five-foot-

wide pedestrian passageway. 

(a) The hours of operation of outdoor dining shall be limited to the 

hours of operation of the associated restaurant. In no event shall the 

hours of operation go past 12:00 midnight. 

(b) Outdoor dining is a separate accessory use, as it is defined as any 

part of a food establishment located outdoors. 

(c) Adequate lighting shall be provided to promote safe passage of 

pedestrians and for patrons. 

(d) Awnings and/or umbrellas may be used in conjunction with the 

outdoor dining area. Awnings shall be adequately secured. Awnings, 

including supporting structures, must be within the property line. 

The bottom of the awning shall be seven feet from the ground. 



 

 

(16) Temporary construction trailers and one sign not exceeding 50 cumulative 

square feet advertising the prime contractor, subcontractor(s), architect, 

financing institution and similar data for the period of construction, beginning 

with the issuance of a construction permit and concluding with the issuance of 

a certificate of occupancy or one year, whichever is less, provided said 

trailer(s) and sign are on the site where construction is taking place and set 

back at least 10 feet from all street and lot lines. 

E. Permitted conditional uses. 

(1) Accessory apartments, as conditional uses, and the requirements for all of 

those residences shall be the same as for single-family residences within this 

zone. Accessory apartments can be developed as an optional development 

scheme and are subject to the following: 

(a) Conditional accessory apartments that are not located within a 

single-family detached dwelling unit are prohibited. 

(b) Studio apartments are prohibited. 

(c) Conditional accessory apartments in the R-1.5 Zoning District shall 

be limited to one such accessory apartment per the lesser of one lot 

or one single-family detached dwelling unit. 

(d) Conditional accessory apartments shall be no larger than 40% of the 

net habitable floor area of the single-family detached dwelling unit 

in which they are located and shall contain no less than the minimum 

net habitable floor area as required by the City's Affordable Housing 

Ordinance, regardless of whether or not the conditional accessory 

apartment is to be created under the City's Affordable Housing 

Ordinance, as applicable. 

(e) Any increase in the number of bedrooms on the lot in question 

caused by the addition of a conditional accessory apartment to an 

existing single-family detached dwelling shall require compliance 

with the parking requirements of the RSIS (N.J.S.A. 5:21-1 et seq.). 

(f) Entrances to conditional accessory apartments shall be limited to the 

front or side elevations of the single-family detached dwelling unit in 

which they are located. If located on a side elevation, such entrance 

shall be situated within the front 1/3 of the structure. 

(g) All conditional accessory apartments shall comply with the 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and the accessibility and 

adaptability requirements of N.J.A.C. 5:94-3.14. 

F. Area and yard requirements for permitted uses and accessory structures. 

Requirement 

Category Hotels/Motels Other Uses 

Principal buildings, minimum   

 Minimum lot area 10,000 square feet 5,000 square feet 

 Minimum lot frontage 100 feet 50 feet 



 

 

Requirement 

Category Hotels/Motels Other Uses 

 Minimum lot width 100 feet 50 feet 

 Minimum lot depth 100 feet 100 feet 

 Minimum setback1   

  Side yard, each 8 feet2 8 feet2 

  Front yard 10 feet 10 feet 

  Rear yard 15 feet 15 feet 

Maximum building height 49 feet 36 feet from base flood elevation (BFE) or 3 
stories, whichever is less 

Maximum building coverage 80% 80% 

Maximum lot coverage 80% 80% 

Accessory building, minimum   

 Distance to front line N/A N/A 

 Distance to side line 4 feet 4 feet 

 Distance to rear line 4 feet 4 feet 

 Distance to other buildings 4 feet 4 feet 

NOTES: 
1 For the purposes of this section, setbacks shall be clear, unoccupied and unobstructed space 

measured at right angles between a lot line and the building envelope and shall extend from 
grade to sky, except for the permitted encroachments detailed hereinbelow, provided that such 
encroachments do not inhibit the free flow of pedestrian traffic. Setbacks shall be construed as 
minimum distances. Greater setbacks are permitted, provided that the specific distances and 
design relate to the architecture of the subject building elevation, and further provided that the 
setback area is heavily treated with a combination of elements detailed hereinbelow. 

2 Zero-foot setback where adjoining structures are constructed with a common party wall, 
provided that access to the rear of each side of the structure is maintained via a service alley, 
and further provided that the parking requirements for each use are maintained via a shared 
parking or similar arrangement. 

 

G. Design standards. The following design standards have been established in order to 

enhance the City's tourist economic base while creating an attractive and inviting 

pedestrian-scaled environment in the Motel Commercial Zoning District. While this 

chapter does not mandate a specific theme for a development in the MC Zoning 

District, designers are strongly encouraged to recognize the historic setting of North 

Wildwood as a family-oriented seashore resort when selecting a design theme. The 

following regulations shall be treated as design elements subject to variance relief: 

(1) The entirety of all building elevations fronting a numbered avenue(s), such as 

Surf and/or Atlantic Avenue(s), regardless of building height, shall be 

considered a front yard and primary elevation, with facades and appurtenances 

treated accordingly. 

(2) Elevations of all buildings which do not front a numbered avenue(s), such as 

Surf and/or Atlantic Avenue(s), when visible from a public right-of-way (i.e., 

above the height of adjacent buildings, whether present or prospective), shall 

be considered a front yard and primary elevation, with facades and 

appurtenances treated accordingly. 



 

 

(3) All building elevations, including those of accessory buildings, shall 

coordinate form, materials, color and detailing to achieve design harmony and 

continuity. 

(4) In considering facade treatment, the applicant/developer is encouraged to 

include a combination of rich detailing, texture, shadow lines and color. Such 

treatment may include, but need not be limited to: 

(a) Awnings and canopies. 

(b) Building articulation. 

(c) Coping, fascia, soffits and architectural filigree. 

(d) Signage. 

(e) Use of color, light and shadows. 

(f) Other aesthetic features consistent with the Design Guidelines for the 

Wildwoods Boardwalk (Appendix XX), as applicable. 

(5) The above notwithstanding, the main entrance to a development in the MC 

Zoning District need only be located on a single elevation, with facades and 

appurtenances treated accordingly. 

(6) For public parking lots: 

(a) Public parking lots shall be no closer than six feet to any lot line, and 

said area shall be suitably landscaped. Landscaped islands, triangles 

or strips planted with shrubbery and trees shall be distributed 

throughout the parking lot in order to break the view of rows of 

parked cars but in a manner not impairing visibility. 

(b) Any public parking lot open for business after dark will be 

illuminated with lamp fixtures emitting a minimum of one 

footcandle between the hours of 1/2 hour after sunset to 1/2 hour 

before sunrise, except when the parking lot is empty. 

(c) All paid public parking lots shall be paved with macadam or 

concrete with striped parking spaces no less than nine feet by 18 feet. 

The parking lot surface shall be maintained in a clean and level 

fashion. 

(d) Public parking lots shall be licensed by the City of North Wildwood 

and conform to applicable codes of the City. 

(7) For hotels and motels, the following standards are applicable: 

(a) The public lobby, registration (check-in) and information station 

(front desk) serving a hotel and/or motel in the MC Zoning District 

may have its public entrances on any building elevation, regardless if 

whether such entrance fronts a numbered avenue(s), such as Surf 

and/or Atlantic Avenue(s). 

(b) Each hotel or motel dwelling unit shall provide a minimum of 250 

square feet of net habitable floor area for each unit containing one 

sleeping room and one bathroom and 350 square feet of net habitable 

floor area for each unit containing one sleeping room, one bathroom 



 

 

and cooking facilities. There shall be a residency limitation on all 

guests of 30 days, provided that the residency limitation shall not 

apply to an employee living on the premises. 

(c) A permanent on-site superintendent's apartment or living quarters 

shall be permitted within a hotel or motel and shall be included in the 

calculation of the permitted density and the number of units with 

cooking facilities. 

(8) In order to create an attractive and inviting pedestrian-scaled environment in 

the MC Zoning District, long runs of blank, unarticulated or unadorned walls, 

at the pedestrian level or above, are prohibited. Designers are encouraged to 

include both horizontal and vertical building articulation, combinations of 

windows (faux or real), architectural detailing and ornamentation to create an 

attractive and exciting design on all building facades. In furtherance of this 

requirement: 

(a) No exterior building wall shall have an uninterrupted horizontal run 

along a single plane for more than 50 linear feet, and no exterior 

building wall shall have an uninterrupted vertical run for more than 

24 feet. The intent of this regulation may be achieved via structural 

or ornamental treatment. 

(b) Horizontal articulation of rooflines is strongly encouraged. 

(c) While glass elements are permitted as architectural features, blank 

walls and the use of glass curtain wall construction are prohibited. 

(d) The uses of dramatic corporate icons and outdoor theatrical lighting 

are encouraged in harmony with the historic setting of North 

Wildwood as a family-oriented seashore resort. 

(e) Where the exterior wall(s) of a building abut an adjacent residential 

use, the facade shall be heavily landscaped and buffered from such 

residential use. 

(f) Street frontages. In order to maximize the vibrancy of the street 

frontage within the MC Zoning District: 

1. With the exception of ground-floor garage entry/exitways, the 

ground-floor frontage of all structures within the Motel Zoning 

District abutting a numbered avenue(s), such as Surf and/or 

Atlantic Avenue(s), shall be devoted to active uses or shall be 

designed as a decorative streetscape with such treatment and 

features as may be required to provide a sense of excitement 

and vibrancy along an otherwise lifeless facade. 

2. Excessive building runs on the same plane at the ground-floor 

level shall be avoided. A combination of building articulation, 

facade differentiation and other architectural treatments shall 

be required to provide the illusion of active uses (e.g., 

storefronts). 



 

 

3. Where designed as an active use, such ground-floor frontage 

shall include clear storefront glass areas to display the nature of 

the use within. Such windows may be either typical large, 

single panes or multiple smaller panes separated by mullions. 

4. Each individual use shall have its own independent entryway 

from the sidewalk/street right-of-way. Frontage may either 

have identical designs to reinforce the overall design of the 

building or varied designs to express individual uses. 

5. Where designed as a decorative streetscape, such treatment 

may include, but need not be limited to, landscaping and 

hardscaping, benches and other street furniture, decorative 

lighting (both pedestrian and architectural lighting standards), 

statuary and other public art, and like and similar features 

which achieve the stated goal both during the day and 

nighttime hours, for the full 12 months of the year. 

6. With the exception of the decorative streetscape treatments 

described herein, sidewalks shall extend from the building 

facade to the curb. 

7. For the purposes of this section, setbacks shall be clear, 

unoccupied and unobstructed space measured at right angles 

between a lot line and the building envelope and shall extend 

from grade to sky, except for the following permitted 

encroachments, provided that such encroachments do not 

inhibit the free flow of pedestrian traffic: 

a. Awnings,* canopies* and porte cocheres.* 

b. Flag/banner poles. 

c. Bicycle racks,* benches,* trash receptacles* and other 

street furniture.* 

d. Pedestrian walkways, breezeways and atria. 

e. Ornamental architectural features.* 

f. Parking areas and access drives thereto. 

g. Tables for outdoor dining.* 

h. Signage and lighting. 

i. Fences and landscaping.* 

j. Like and similar features. 

(g) Outdoor dining shall take place on site but not be located in the 

public sidewalk and/or public/street right-of-way. Outside tables and 

seats may be situated outside of the building on the parcel/lot but not 

in the public/street right-of-way. No operation of a business in the 

MC Zoning District shall be located in such a way that less than five 

feet of paved sidewalk remains for the exclusive use of the traveled 

way for pedestrians, nor shall any such operation of the business or 



 

 

outside tables and seats project or protrude into, on or above the 

required five-foot-wide pedestrian passageway. 

(h) Setbacks shall be construed as minimum distances. Greater setbacks 

are permitted, provided that the specific distances and design relate 

to the architecture of the subject building elevation, and further 

provided that the setback area is heavily treated with a combination 

of elements designated above by asterisks(*). 

(i) Setbacks shall not apply to vacated rights-of-way. Awnings and 

canopies servicing street-level commercial space entryways may 

extend into/onto a public right-of-way at a distance to the curb, with 

support of said awnings and canopies at the curb and building 

facade. The public right-of-way underneath the awnings and 

canopies shall remain clear. 

H. Screening. 

(1) For hotels/motels, delivery and loading areas, mechanical equipment, garbage 

and recycling storage and similar back-of-the-house functions shall be 

enclosed within the building and shall be screened so as not to be visible from 

any public right-of-way or adjacent property. 

(2) For all other uses, delivery and loading areas, mechanical equipment, garbage 

and recycling storage and similar back-of-the-house functions, functions shall 

be enclosed within the building to the extent practicable. Otherwise, such 

functions shall be screened so as not to be visible from any public right-of-

way or adjacent property. 

(3) Pergolas, trellises or other screening above parked vehicles is required where 

exposed flat roofs are used as parking decks and for mechanical and related 

items. 

I. General Requirements. 

(1) Any principal building may contain more than one permitted use and/or 

organization, provided that the total building coverage of the combined 

activities does not exceed the maximum building coverage specified for the 

district and, further, that each activity occupies a minimum gross floor area of 

500 square feet for uses in the zoning district. 

(2) More than one principal building shall be permitted in all structures. All 

principal buildings shall be separated by a minimum of 20 feet, provided such 

separation is to be used solely for pedestrian circulation. All buildings shall be 

separated by a minimum of 50 feet where any part of such separation is to be 

used for parking or vehicular circulation. However, the separation 

requirements should not be construed to prohibit covered pedestrian walkways 

when the roof or covering of such walkway extends between the buildings. 

Pedestrian circulation zones shall be marked with yellow cross-striping 

pavement markings and marked with signage as "No Parking or Standing 

Zones" if adjacent to automobile traffic or parking areas. 



 

 

(3) All buildings on a single commercial site shall be compatibly designed, 

whether constructed all at one time or in stages over a period of time. All 

building walls facing any street or residential district line shall be suitably 

finished for aesthetic purposes. 

(4) Merchandise, products, equipment or similar materials or objects can be 

displayed or stored outside so long as the merchandise, products, equipment 

or similar materials or objects shall be located/installed in such a manner that 

they do not interfere with or are not located in the sidewalk area to prevent 

free travel of pedestrians. No operation of a business in the MC Zoning 

District shall be located in such a way that less than five feet of paved 

sidewalk remains for the exclusive use of the traveled way for pedestrians, nor 

shall any such operation of the business or outside tables and seats project or 

protrude into, on or above the required five-foot-wide pedestrian passageway. 

(5) All areas not utilized for buildings, parking, loading, access aisles, driveways 

or pedestrian walkways shall be suitably landscaped with shrubs, ground 

cover, seeding or similar plantings and maintained in good condition. 

Suggested plant species are referenced in Appendix A. 

(6) Air-conditioning/HVAC compressor units and emergency electrical 

generators are not permitted in the front yard of any principal structure and/or 

lot. Air-conditioning/HVAC compressor units and emergency electrical 

generators are not permitted in the front 50% of a side yard setback; and as to 

any such equipment that is located in a side yard setback, it shall be screened 

so as to not be visible from any street or adjoining property when viewed from 

ground level. Temporary (i.e., removable) window air-conditioning units and 

temporary ductless air-conditioning/HVAC compressor units that do not 

project more than one foot beyond the existing structure are permitted when 

incorporated into an existing building by way of renovation. Replacement of 

in-kind units, without any increase in footprint size, located in the setback area 

prior to the adoption of this section are exempt from this regulation. 

(7) Landscaping shall be provided in the front yard area and shall be reasonably 

distributed throughout the entire front yard area. Suggested plant species are 

referenced in Appendix A.[5] 

(8) Bicycle racks shall be located on the business site, with a minimum capacity 

of seven bicycles. No locking mechanisms need to be provided. The racks 

shall be located/installed in such a manner that they do not interfere with or 

are not located in the public/street right-of-way and/or sidewalk area. 

J. Sign Requirements. 

(1) General signage standards. 

(a) While not located on the Boardwalk, the signage section of the 

Design Guidelines for the Wildwoods Boardwalk (Appendix XX and 

referenced and incorporated herein) shall serve as the philosophical 

underpinnings for the standards for signage in the MC Zoning 



 

 

District, with specific standards established accordingly 

hereinbelow. All exterior signs shall identify uses, activities or 

functions of the development on which the sign is located. No 

advertising of any product, use or activity outside of the 

development shall be permitted. 

(b) Signage for similar project elements shall be coordinated and 

similarly themed to provide a unifying style. All signs for individual 

uses shall conform in character with all other signs in the complex 

and shall blend with the overall architectural scheme of the district. 

(c) This regulation shall not be construed to mean that all signs must be 

identical or to prohibit unique sign designs where necessary and 

appropriate, but rather that, absent specific justification (i.e., 

branding/themeing requirements for themed retail outlets or food and 

beverage outlets), sign design shall be complementary and 

consistent. 

(d) No vacant signs or sign boxes shall be permitted. Where vacancies 

occur, corresponding signage shall be immediately replaced with 

general development or other appropriate signage. Similarly, any 

sign which falls into a state of disrepair shall immediately be 

repaired or replaced. 

(e) This regulation shall not be construed to include intentional removal 

of sign faces in the off-season, which is a typical practice along the 

Wildwoods Boardwalk. However, upon any such intentional 

removal, an aesthetically treated replacement panel shall be 

employed so as not to leave a visibly vacant sign box. 

(f) All signs must be professionally designed and constructed. 

Homemade-type plywood, coroplast or cardboard signs or home-

computer-generated-type signs are expressly prohibited. 

(g) Sign lighting shall be appropriate for the type and style of sign 

proposed and may include LED, neon or other illumination. 

Similarly, the use of neon lighting or similar material to create 

sculptural logo or iconographic images is encouraged. 

(h) No restrictions are established for interior project signage (defined as 

the interior wall area of a project, whether within an enclosed 

structure or on the inward-facing frontage of a structure internal to a 

project.). Developers are encouraged to establish a creative interior 

sign package consistent with the type and scope of the project 

proposed. 

(2) Project identification signage. 

(a) Each elevation of a principal building may have one building-

mounted project identification sign depicting the name of the project 

and such other logo or corporate iconography as may be appropriate. 



 

 

While the size, location and configuration of such signage shall be 

appropriate to the elevation on which such sign is located, such sign 

shall be located at the uppermost section of the building, but shall be 

no higher than the roofline of the wall on which such sign is affixed, 

and shall have a total sign area not exceeding 10 feet in height 

multiplied by the width of the building elevation on which such sign 

is affixed. However, each such sign may extend to a maximum of 20 

feet in height multiplied by the width of the building elevation on 

which such sign is affixed, provided the sign conforms to the 

conditional signage standards detailed hereinbelow. The bottom edge 

of such sign shall be a minimum of 10 feet from finished grade if 

located on a numbered avenue (i.e., 26th or 25th Avenue), Surf 

Avenue or Atlantic Avenue, but in no case shall it project below the 

awning, canopy or other element on which such sign is affixed. 

(b) In addition to the project identification signs as permitted herein, 

each porte cochere or primary entranceway of a principal building 

may have one building-mounted project identification sign depicting 

the name of the project and such other logo or corporate iconography 

as may be appropriate. While the size, location and configuration of 

such signage shall be appropriate to the porte cochere or 

entranceway on which such sign is located, such sign shall not 

exceed the length of the awning, canopy or other element over which 

such sign is affixed. The bottom edge of such sign shall be a 

minimum of 10 feet from finished grade if located on a numbered 

avenue, Surf Avenue or Atlantic Avenue, but in no case shall it 

project below the awning, canopy or other element on which such 

sign is affixed. The height of such sign shall be 12 feet from finished 

grade, but in no case higher than the awning, canopy or other 

element on which such sign is affixed, and shall have a total sign 

area not exceeding two feet in height multiplied by the width of the 

awning, canopy or other element on which such sign is affixed. 

However, such signage may extend to a maximum of four feet in 

height multiplied by the width of the awning, canopy or other 

element on which such sign is affixed, provided such sign conforms 

to the conditional signage standards detailed herein. In such case, the 

height of such sign shall be 14 feet from finished grade. 

(c) Each principal building may have one freestanding project 

identification (pole) sign per street frontage depicting the name of 

the project and such other logo or corporate iconography as may be 

appropriate. The location and configuration of such signage shall be 

appropriate to the street frontage on which such sign is located. 

However, freestanding signs shall respect the building setbacks as 



 

 

provided for herein. Each such identification sign shall not exceed 

150 square feet in area or 25 feet in height. However, each such sign 

may extend to a maximum of 1,000 square feet in area and 50 feet in 

height, provided it conforms to the conditional signage standards 

detailed hereinbelow. 

(3) Use-oriented identification signage. 

(a) Each permitted principal use within but visible from the outside of a 

hotel/motel may have one use-oriented identification sign mounted 

above the storefront of such use, depicting the name of the use and 

such other logo or corporate iconography as may be appropriate. 

(b) Each individual use-oriented identification sign shall not exceed the 

length of the storefront over which such sign is affixed. The bottom 

edge of such sign shall be a minimum of 10 feet from finished grade 

if located on a numbered avenue, Surf Avenue or Atlantic Avenue, 

but in no case shall it project below the awning, canopy or other 

element on which such sign is affixed. 

(c) Such sign shall be no higher than the awning, canopy or other 

element on which such sign is affixed and shall have a total sign area 

not exceeding two feet in height multiplied by the width of the 

awning, canopy or other element on which such sign is affixed. 

However, each such sign may extend to a maximum of four feet in 

height multiplied by the width of the awning, canopy or other 

element on which such sign is affixed, provided such sign conforms 

to the conditional signage standards detailed hereinbelow. 

(4) See § 276-40 (requirements for signs) for additional standards. 

K. Minimum off-street parking. Each individual use shall provide parking spaces 

according to the following minimum provisions. Where a permitted use of land 

includes different specific activities with different specific parking requirements, 

individually computing the parking requirements for each different activity and 

adding the resulting numbers together shall obtain the total number of required 

parking spaces. 

(1) Hotels and motels shall provide parking as follows: 

 

Room Size 

(square feet) 

Parking Spaces 

(per unit) 

Under 375 1.1 

376 to 800 1.25 

801 to 1,250 1.5 

Over 1,250 2.0 

Plus 1 space for every 10 seats provided in an ancillary restaurant 



 

 

(a) Freestanding parking garages or storage sheds are not permitted as 

part of a motel development. Accordingly, all garages and storage 

structures shall be physically attached to the motel. It is the City's 

intention not to permit traditional, open parking decks wherein 

parked vehicles are visible to the public from any right-of-way. 

Window-like cutouts and/or other architectural elements are required 

so as to resemble hotel/motel units while providing for garage 

ventilation as necessary. Parking garages may be attached by way of 

an enclosed walkway, which may be elevated or at grade. Off-site 

parking lots can be located off site from the motel development 

within the block hosting the subject property and the block frontage 

facing the subject property. 

(b) For purposes of this section: 

1. The term "block hosting the subject property" shall mean the 

entirety of the block on which the property proposing the 

expansion of multifamily development units is located; and 

2. The term "block frontage facing the subject property" shall 

mean the (typically 1/2) portion of the block across the street 

from the subject property between intersecting streets. 

(2) Bed-and-breakfast establishments shall provide one space per sleeping room, 

plus two spaces for the permanent living quarters of the owner. 

(3) Permitted uses such as those uses listed in § 276-24B(3), (4), (5) and (8) shall 

provide parking at the ratio of one space per 400 square feet of gross floor 

area. 

(4) Traditional open-air, active, sports-oriented entertainment/recreation elements, 

such as tennis courts and miniature golf courses, shall provide one space per 

each hole, plus one space for each employee, but in all cases a sufficient 

number of spaces shall be provided to accommodate expected needs for any 

permitted recreational use. 

(5) Permitted uses such as those uses listed in § 276-24B(6) shall provide a 

minimum of one space for every six seats, but in all cases a sufficient number 

of spaces to prevent any parking along private driveways, fire lanes and aisles. 

Outdoor seating/dining areas intended for use during spring, summer and 

autumn months shall not be considered when calculating the number of 

parking spaces required by this subsection. 

(6) Shared parking use of open parking lots with other permitted uses of the MC 

Zoning District is highly encouraged. 

(7) See § 276-35 (requirements for parking) for additional standards. 

L. Minimum off-street loading; trash and garbage locations. 

(1) The need for, location and design of off-street loading and unloading areas 

shall be considered and determined at the time of site plan review. Off-street 



 

 

loading and unloading areas shall take place on site but not in the public/street 

right-of-way. 

(2) The need for, location and design of trash and garbage locations shall be 

considered and determined at the time of site plan review. Recycling, trash 

and garbage loading and unloading areas shall take place on site but not in the 

public/street right-of-way. All solid waste not stored within a building shall be 

stored within an enclosed container. 

(3) Each use must include provisions for the collection, disposition and recycling 

of recyclable materials, including newspapers, leaves, white high-grade paper, 

glass bottles and jars, aluminum, corrugated cardboard, and tin and bimetal 

cans. The amount of recyclable material generated weekly by each use shall 

be quantified and reviewed during site plan review to determine whether the 

storage area to contain a week's accumulation of recyclable material is 

adequate in size and location. The storage area shall be designed for truck 

access for pickup of materials and shall be suitably screened from view if 

located outside a building. 

(4) Recycling, trash and garbage loading and unloading areas shall be marked 

with yellow cross-striping pavement markings and marked with signage as 

"No Parking or Standing Zones" if adjacent to automobile traffic or parking 

areas. 

(5) For hotels/motels, delivery and loading areas, mechanical equipment, garbage 

and recycling storage and similar back-of-the-house functions shall be 

enclosed within the building and shall be screened so as not to be visible from 

any public right-of-way or adjacent property. 

(6) See § 276-44 for additional standards. 

 

Section Three.  If any portion of this Ordinance is determined to be invalid by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, that determination shall have no effect upon the remainder of this 

Ordinance, which shall remain valid and operable. 

 Section Four.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance, 

to the extent of such inconsistencies only, be and the same hereby are repealed.             

  Section Five.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon final passage and 

publication as provided by law. 

      
      ________________________________ 
      Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
___________________________________ 
W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
Introduced:   March 19, 2024       
PB Recommendation:   
Advertised:     
Hearing/Final:    
Advertised:     
  



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  1931 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING 
CHAPTER 200, CONSTRUCTION CODES, OF THE CODE OF 

THE CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of 
Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 

 
Section One.  Chapter 200 of the Code of the City of North Wildwood is hereby amended and 
supplemented by the addition of a new section, which shall be codified as §200-5 and which shall 
read as follows: 

§200-5.  Licensing of Contractors. 
 

A. Definitions. 
 

COMMERCIAL CONTRACTOR 
Shall mean a person engaged in the business of making real estate improvements to any 
property that is not residential or noncommercial property and includes a corporation, 
partnership, association and any other form of business organization or entity, and its 
officers, representatives, agents and employees. 
 

NONCOMMERCIAL PROPERTY 
Shall mean multi-unit structure other than single or two family used in whole or in part as 
a place of residence, and all structures appurtenant thereto, and any portion of the lot or 
site on which the structure is situated which is devoted to the residential use of the 
structure. 
 

REAL ESTATE IMPROVEMENT 
Shall mean the remodeling, altering, renovating, repairing, resorting, modernizing, 
moving, demolishing, or otherwise improving or modifying of the whole or any part of 
any residential or noncommercial property. Real estate improvement shall also include 
insulation installation, and the conversion of existing commercial structures into 
residential or noncommercial property. 
 

REAL ESTATE IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT 
Shall mean an oral or written agreement for the performance of a real estate improvement 
between a contractor and an owner, tenant or lessee, of a residential or noncommercial 
property, and includes all agreements under which the contractor is to perform labor or 
render services for real estate improvements or furnish materials in connection therewith. 
 

RESIDENTIAL CONTRACTOR 
Shall mean a person engaged in the business of making or selling real estate improvements 
and includes a corporation, partnership, association and any other form of business 
organization or entity, and its officers, representatives, agents and employees. 
 

B. Application. 
 



1. All persons desiring to become registered commercial contractors in the City of North 
Wildwood shall make application to the Construction Official, on forms provided by the 
Construction Official and return it with the license registration fee to the Construction 
Official.  It shall be sufficient for any one member of a firm or corporation to make 
application, take the examination, be certified and be licensed. Only one registration fee 
and one annual renewal fee shall be required of any firm or corporation. 

 
2. Each commercial contractor shall submit the following on forms provided by the 

Construction Official: 
 
a. Trade name and type of license applying for. 
b. Owner/contractor name. 
c. Address, office telephone number and home phone number. 
d. Insurance name, address and policy number. 

 

C. License. 
 

1. Every person who qualifies as determined by the Construction Official shall be licensed by 
the construction official to engage in and carry on any business in the City of North 
Wildwood. 
 

2. No person shall engage in any work as a residential contractor until he or she has registered 
with the New Jersey Department of Community Affairs, if such registration is mandated 
under the New Jersey Contractors' Registration Act (N.J.S.A. 56:8-136), or has been 
exempt from said registration by any one of the exceptions found in N.J.S.A. 56:8-140. 

 
3. No person shall engage in any work as a commercial contractor until he or she has secured 

a license from the City of Wildwood under the requirements of this section. 
 

4. No person who is exempt from registration under the New Jersey Contractors' Registration 
Act (N.J.S.A. 56-8-136) shall engage in any work as a residential contractor unless such 
person has secured a license from the City of North Wildwood under the requirements of 
this section. 

 
5. The Construction Official is authorized to issue licenses upon the delivery to him of the 

certification and payment of the license registration fee. The license shall entitle the holder 
to be designated as a registered contractor, and shall only apply to the person or firm to 
whom issued. 
 

D. Fees; Term of License; Renewal; Types of Contractors. 
 

1. Licenses shall run from January 1 to December 31 of each calendar year. Neither the license 
registration fee nor the annual renewal fee shall be prorated. For contractors, the license 
registration fee shall be two hundred fifty ($250.00) dollars and the annual renewal fee 
shall be one hundred fifty ($150.00) dollars. If a license is not renewed during the first 
three months of the year, prior to March 31, it shall be treated as a new license, however, 
it shall not be considered a grace period for obtaining such license and any contractor who 
performs work as a commercial contractor without such license shall be in violation of this 
chapter. 
 

2. For the purpose of this chapter, contractors shall include but be not limited to the following 
contractors: 

 

a. Air conditioning and refrigeration. 
b. Awning installation. 
c. Brick and block masons, concrete and cement. 
d. Building. 
e. Carpeting installation. 
f. Carpentry. 



g. Contractors not otherwise classified, i.e., jobbers. 
h. Excavating, filing or cleaning of land. 
i. Floor and wall finishing. 
j. General. 
k. House moving. 
l. Iron and steel. 
m. Landscape gardening and nursery. 
n. Locksmiths. 
o. Metal storm door and window installation. 
p. Painting. 
q. Pile driving. 
r. Plastering. 
s. Plate glass and glazing. 
t. Roofing. 
u. Sign design and erecting. 
v. TV, Radio and Cellular antennas. 
w. Tile setting. 
x. Erection of a permanent or temporary tent. 

 
E. Revocation of License. 

 
1. If any person licensed in accordance with the provisions of this section shall violate any 

statute, ordinance or regulation in the execution of any work for which a permit is required 
by the applicant in the City of North Wildwood, the Construction Official and/or the 
building subcode official shall revoke the license of such licensee immediately. The 
Construction Official and/or building subcode official shall not restore such license during 
such time as the violation exists or remains. 
 

2. Any contractor whose license has been revoked under the provisions of this section may 
be relicensed by the construction official provided that the grounds upon which such 
license was revoked are removed or corrected, or upon payment of the prescribed fee. 
Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, any person or entity whose 
license has been revoked two times shall be prohibited from being relicensed by the City 
of North Wildwood. This provision shall also apply to the individuals designated as being 
responsible for the conduct of the nonproprietorship licensee. 
 

3. Any contractor whose license has been revoked shall have the right to a hearing before the 
city commissioners by giving notice in writing to the construction official within ten days 
after receipt of the notice of revocation. 
 

F. Insurance. 

No license shall be issued unless and until the applicant shall submit satisfactory evidence 
in writing that he is covered by liability insurance with a combined single limit of five 
hundred thousand ($500,000.00) dollars per occurrence.  The City of North Wildwood shall 
be named as “Additional Insured” on the applicant’s liability policy. 

 
Section Two.  The portion of Ordinance 1578 that has been codified in the Code of the City of 
North Wildwood at §200-3 is hereby amended and supplemented by the addition of a new section, 
which shall be codified as §200-3D and which shall read as follows: 

 D.  The Construction Official, at his sole discretion, may waive construction permit 
surcharge fees and/or enforcing agency fees in connection with any construction, 
reconstruction, alteration or improvement performed by or on behalf of any charitable or 
non-profit entity, or for the purpose of providing or enhancing accessibility for any disabled 
person. 

 
Section Three.  The portion of Ordinance 1578 that has been codified in the Code of the City of 
North Wildwood at §200-3 is hereby amended and supplemented by the addition of a new section, 
which shall be codified as §200-3E and which shall read as follows: 

 E.  The minimum construction permit fee shall be $75.00. 



 
 
Section Four.  If any portion of this Ordinance is determined to be invalid by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, that determination shall have no effect upon the remainder of this Ordinance, which 
shall remain valid and operable.               

Section Five.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance, to the extent 
of such inconsistencies only, be and the same hereby are repealed.               

Section Six.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon final passage and publication as 
provided by law.     

________________________________ 

      Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 

___________________________________ 

W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 

Introduced:   March 19, 2024       
Advertised:    March 27, 2024    
Public Hearing/Final: April 16, 2024      
Advertised:   April 24, 2024    

 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  1930 
 

BOND ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR 
VARIOUS CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS BY 
AND FOR THE CITY OF NORTH 
WILDWOOD, IN THE COUNTY OF CAPE 
MAY, STATE OF NEW JERSEY; 
APPROPRIATING $4,000,000 THEREFOR 
AND AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF 
$3,800,000 IN BONDS OR NOTES TO 
FINANCE PART OF THE COST THEREOF 
 

 
  BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF NORTH WILDWOOD, IN THE COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

(not less than two-thirds of all members thereof affirmatively concurring) AS FOLLOWS: 

  SECTION 1.  The improvement or purpose described in Section 3 of this bond 

ordinance is hereby authorized as a general improvement or purpose to be undertaken by the City of 

North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey (the “City”).  For the said 

improvement or purpose stated in Section 3, there is hereby appropriated the sum of $4,000,000, 

said sum being inclusive of $200,000 as the amount of down payment for said improvements or 

purposes as required by the Local Bond Law, N.J.S.A. 40A:2-1 et seq., as amended and 

supplemented (the “Local Bond Law”).  The down payment is now available therefor by virtue of 

either provisions or a provision in a previously adopted budget or budgets of the City for down 

payment or for capital improvement purposes or from moneys actually held by the City. 

  SECTION 2.   For the financing of said improvement or purpose described in 

Section 3 hereof, and to meet the part of the $4,000,000 appropriation not provided for by 

application hereunder of the down payment, negotiable bonds of the City are hereby authorized to 

be issued in the principal amount of $3,800,000 pursuant to the Local Bond Law.  In anticipation 

of the issuance of said bonds and to temporarily finance said improvements or purposes, negotiable 

notes of the City in the principal amount not exceeding $3,800,000 are hereby authorized to be 

issued pursuant to and within the limitations prescribed by said Local Bond Law. 

  SECTION 3.  (a)  The improvements hereby authorized and purposes for the 

financing of which said bonds or notes are to be issued, include, but are not limited to, the following: 



 
Description 

 
Appropriation

 
Authorization

Down 
Payment 

Useful 
Life 

(i)  Streets, Roads And 
Bulkheads – Various 
Improvements to Streets, Roads 
and Bulkheads Throughout The 
City, Such Improvements 
Including, But Not Limited To, 
As Applicable, Milling, Paving, 
Reconstruction And Resurfacing 
Of The Street, Road and/or 
Bulkhead, The Repairing And/Or 
Installation Of Associated Curbs, 
Sidewalks, Driveway Aprons, 
Drainage Improvements, And 
Roadway Painting, Landscaping 
And Aesthetic Improvements. 
 

$2,000,000 $1,900,000 $100,000 20 years 

(ii)  Buildings, Grounds And 
Beaches - Various Improvements 
To City Buildings, Grounds And 
Beaches Including, But Not 
Limited To, Seawall Repair And 
Beach Replenishment  

$2,000,000 $1,900,000 $100,000 15.00 years

     
TOTALS $4,000,000 $3,800,000 $200,000  

 

  (b)  All such improvements or purposes set forth in Section 3(a) shall include, but 

are not limited to, as applicable, all engineering and design work, surveying, construction planning, 

preparation of plans and specifications, permits, bid documents, construction inspection and contract 

administration, and all work, materials, equipment, labor and appurtenances necessary therefor or 

incidental thereto and all in accordance with the plans and specifications. 

  (c) The estimated maximum amount of bonds or notes to be issued for said 

improvement or purpose is $3,800,000. 

  (d) The estimated cost of said improvement or purpose is $4,000,000, the excess 

thereof over the said estimated maximum amount of bonds or notes to be issued therefor is the down 

payment available for said improvement or purpose in the amount of $200,000. 

  SECTION 4.   In the event the United States of America, the State of New Jersey, the 

County of Cape May and/or a private entity make a contribution or grant in aid to the City, for the 

improvement and purpose authorized hereby and the same shall be received by the City prior to the 

issuance of the bonds or notes authorized in Section 2 hereof, then the amount of such bonds or notes 

to be issued shall be reduced by the amount so received from the United States of America, the State 

of New Jersey, the County of Cape May and/or a private entity.  In the event, however, that any 

amount so contributed or granted by the United States of America, the State of New Jersey, the County 



of Cape May and/or a private entity, shall be received by the City after the issuance of the bonds or 

notes authorized in Section 2 hereof, then such funds shall be applied to the payment of the bonds or 

notes so issued and shall be used for no other purpose. 

  SECTION 5.   All bond anticipation notes issued hereunder shall mature at such times 

as may be determined by the Chief Financial Officer of the City, provided that no note shall mature 

later than one (1) year from its date unless such bond anticipation notes are permitted to mature at 

such later date in accordance with applicable law.  The notes shall bear interest at such rate or rates 

and be in such form as may be determined by the Chief Financial Officer.  The Chief Financial Officer 

of the City shall determine all matters in connection with the notes issued pursuant to this bond 

ordinance, and the signature of the Chief Financial Officer upon the notes shall be conclusive evidence 

as to all such determinations.  All notes issued hereunder may be renewed from time to time in 

accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:2-8(a).  The Chief Financial Officer is hereby 

authorized to sell part or all of the notes from time to time at public or private sale and to deliver them 

to the purchaser thereof upon receipt of payment of the purchase price and accrued interest thereon 

from their dates to the date of delivery thereof.  The Chief Financial Officer is directed to report in 

writing to the governing body at the meeting next succeeding the date when any sale or delivery of 

the notes pursuant to this bond ordinance is made.  Such report must include the principal amount, 

the description, the interest rate, and the maturity schedule of the notes so sold, the price obtained and 

the name of the purchaser.  

  SECTION 6.   The Capital Budget of the City is hereby amended to conform with 

the provisions of this bond ordinance, and to the extent of any inconsistency herewith, a resolution in 

the form promulgated by the Local Finance Board showing full detail of the amended Capital Budget 

as approved by the Director of the Division of Local Government Services, New Jersey Department 

of Community Affairs, will be on file in the Office of the Clerk and will be available for public 

inspection. 

  SECTION 7.   The following additional matters are hereby determined, declared, 

recited and stated: 

  (a) The improvement or purpose described in Section 3 of this bond ordinance is 

not a current expense and is an improvement or purpose which the City may lawfully undertake as a 

general improvement or purpose, and no part of the cost thereof has been or shall be specially assessed 

on property specially benefited thereby. 



  (b) The average period of usefulness of said improvement or purpose within the 

limitations of said Local Bond Law, according to the reasonable life thereof computed from the date 

of the said bonds authorized by this bond ordinance, is 17.50 years. 

  (c) The supplemental debt statement required by the Local Bond Law has been 

duly made and filed in the Office of the Clerk of the City and a complete executed duplicate thereof 

has been filed in the Office of the Director of the Division of Local Government Services, New Jersey 

Department of Community Affairs, and such statement shows that the gross debt of the City as defined 

in the Local Bond Law is increased by the authorization of the bonds or notes provided for in this 

bond ordinance by $3,800,000 and the said obligations authorized by this bond ordinance will be 

within all debt limitations prescribed by said Local Bond Law. 

  (d) An aggregate amount not exceeding $800,000 for items of expense listed in 

and permitted under section 20 of the Local Bond Law is included in the estimated cost indicated 

herein for the purpose or improvement hereinbefore described. 

  SECTION 8.   The full faith and credit of the City are hereby pledged to the punctual 

payment of the principal of and the interest on the obligations authorized by this bond ordinance.  The 

obligations shall be direct, unlimited obligations of the City, and the City shall be obligated to levy 

ad valorem taxes upon all the taxable property within the City for the payment of the obligations and 

the interest thereon without limitation as to rate or amount. 

  SECTION 9.   The City hereby declares the intent of the City to issue the bonds or 

bond anticipation notes in the amount authorized in Section 2 of this bond ordinance and to use 

proceeds to pay or reimburse expenditures for the costs of the purposes described in Section 3 of this 

bond ordinance.  This Section 9 is a declaration of intent within the meaning and for purposes of 

Treasury Regulations §1.100-2 or any successor provisions of federal income tax law. 

  SECTION 10.   The City Chief Financial Officer is hereby authorized to prepare and 

to update from time to time as necessary a financial disclosure document to be distributed in 

connection with the sale of obligations of the City and to execute such disclosure document on behalf 

of the City.  The City Chief Financial Officer is further authorized to enter into the appropriate 

undertaking to provide secondary market disclosure on behalf of the City pursuant to Rule 10c2-12 

of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Rule”) for the benefit of holders and beneficial 

owners of obligations of the City and to amend such undertaking from time to time in connection with 

any change in law, or interpretation thereof, provided such undertaking is and continues to be, in the 



opinion of a nationally recognized bond counsel, consistent with the requirements of the Rule.  In the 

event that the City fails to comply with its undertaking, the City shall not be liable for any monetary 

damages, and the remedy shall be limited to specific performance of the undertaking. 

  SECTION 11.   The City covenants to maintain the exclusion from gross income 

under Section 103(a) of the Code of the interest on all bonds and notes issued under this ordinance. 

SECTION 12.   This bond ordinance shall take effect twenty (20) days after the first 

publication thereof after final adoption and approval by the Mayor, as provided by the Local Bond 

Law. 

 

 

               ___________________________ 
                                                                       Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________ 
W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 

 

Introduced:   March 19, 2024 
Advertised:   March 27, 2024  
Hearing/Final: April 16, 2024 
Advertised:   April 24, 2024 

 
 

(Effective May 15, 2024) 
 



 

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
CALENDAR YEAR 2024 

ORDINANCE TO EXCEED THE MUNICIPAL BUDGET  
APPROPRIATION LIMITS  

AND TO ESTABLISH A CAP BANK 
 (N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-45.14) 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 1929 

 
WHEREAS, the Local Government Cap Law, N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-45.1 et seq., provides that in the 
preparation of its annual budget, a municipality shall limit any increase in said budget to 2.5% 
unless authorized by ordinance to increase it to 3.5% over the previous year’s final appropriations, 
subject to certain exceptions; and 

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-45.15a provides that a municipality may, when authorized by 
ordinance, appropriate the difference between the amount of its actual final appropriation and the 
3.5% percentage rate as an exception to its final appropriations in either of the next two succeeding 
years; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood in the County of Cape May 
finds it advisable and necessary to increase its CY 2024 budget by up to 3.5% over the previous 
year’s final appropriations, in the interest of promoting the health, safety and welfare of the 
citizens; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood hereby determines that a 
3.5% increase in the budget for said year, amounting to $ 801,404.93 in excess of the increase in 
final appropriations otherwise permitted by the Local Government Cap Law, is advisable and 
necessary; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood hereby determines that any 
amount authorized hereinabove that is not appropriated, as part of the final budget shall be retained 
as an exception to final appropriation in either of the next two succeeding years. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and Council of the City of North 
Wildwood, in the County of Cape May a majority of the full authorized membership of this 
governing body affirmatively concurring, that, in the CY 2024 budget year, the final 
appropriations of the City of North Wildwood shall, in accordance with this ordinance and 
N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-45.14, be increased by 3.5 %, amounting to $ 801,404.93 and that the CY 2024 
municipal budget for the City of North Wildwood be approved and adopted in accordance with this 
ordinance.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that any amount authorized hereinabove that is not appropriated 
as part of the final budget shall be retained as an exception to final appropriation in either of the 
next two succeeding years. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that a certified copy of this ordinance as introduced be filed 
with the Director of the Division of Local Government Services within 5 days of introduction.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that a certified copy of this ordinance upon adoption, with the 
recorded vote included thereon, be filed with said Director within 5 days after such adoption. 

 
APPROVED: 
 

      ______________________________ 
      Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
       
 

ATTEST: 
 

_______________________ 
W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 

 
Introduced:   March 5, 2024  
Advertised:   March 13, 2024  
Hearing/Final: April 16, 2024  
Advertised:    April 24, 2024  

    
 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

RESOLUTION 
 

PROCLAIMING WEEK OF MAY 5 -MAY 11, 2024  
AS MUNICIPAL CLERKS WEEK 

 

WHEREAS, the Office of Municipal Clerk, a time-honored and vital part of local 
government, exists throughout the world; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Office of Municipal Clerk is the oldest among public servants; 
and 

 

WHEREAS, the Office of Municipal Clerk provides the professional link 
between the citizens, the local governing bodies and agencies of government at other 
levels; and 

 

WHEREAS, Municipal Clerks have pledged to be ever mindful of their neutrality 
and impartiality, rendering equal service to all; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Office of Municipal Clerk serves as the information center on 
functions of local government and community; and 

 

WHEREAS, Municipal Clerks continually strive to improve the administration of 
the affairs of the Office of Municipal Clerk through participation in education programs, 
seminars, workshops and the annual meetings of their county, state, and international 
professional organizations; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is most appropriate that the City of North Wildwood recognize 
the accomplishments of the Office of Municipal Clerk. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council of 
the City of North Wildwood does hereby recognize and proclaim the Week of May 5 
through May 11, 2024 as Municipal Clerks Week. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that appreciation be extended to the City Clerk 
and staff of the City of North Wildwood and to all Municipal Clerks for the vital services 
they perform and their exemplary dedication to the communities they represent. 
 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY                                                          COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, 
State of New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a 
Resolution adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a 
meeting duly held on the 16th day of April 2024. 
 
Dated:    April 16, 2024   Signed:  _______________________                                
        W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 

 
Approved: __________________________  
 Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
               

#          143-24 



 

 

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

APPROVING PLACE-TO-PLACE TRANSFER (EXPANSION OF LICENSED 
PREMISES) OF PLENARY RETAIL CONSUMPTION LICENSE #0507-33-022-010 

ISSUED TO 201 OLDE NJ AVE, L.L.C. t/a JOE JOE’S TACOS AND TEQUILA 
 

WHEREAS, N.J.A.C. 13:2-7.2(c) indicates that expansion of licensed premises “shall 
require a place-to-place (expansion of premises) transfer application;” and  

 

WHEREAS, 201 Olde NJ Ave, L.L.C. (“Applicant”) has made application unto the 
issuing authority of the City of North Wildwood, New Jersey, for a place-to-place transfer 
(expansion of licensed premises) as shown on the sketch attached to the application regarding 
Plenary Retail Consumption License #0507-33-022-010, and the required fees and appropriate 
application for said transfer having been received; and 
 

WHEREAS, said Applicant has and/or is complying with all of the statutory 
requirements to effect said transfer and the issuing authority having found: (1) that the premises 
are suitable for said purposes; (2) that the application supplied by the Applicant is complete in all 
respects; and (3) that the Applicant and the premises are otherwise qualified to be licensed 
according to statutory, regulatory and local government alcoholic beverage control laws and 
regulations; and 

 

WHEREAS, Proof of Publication of the necessary advertisement of the notice of said 
transfer has been received; and 

 

WHEREAS, no objections to the requested transfer have been filed with the City Clerk, 
and this body is of the opinion that said application for transfer should be granted, SUBJECT, 
HOWEVER, TO THE IMPOSITION OF A SPECIAL CONDITION. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of Council of the City of 
North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey that the place-to-place 
transfer (expansion of licensed premises) of Plenary Retail Consumption License #0507-33-022-
010, as more particularly depicted on the sketch that accompanied the transfer application, be 
and the same hereby is approved for the place-to-place transfer to expand the licensed premises 
located at 201 Olde New Jersey Avenue, North Wildwood, New Jersey 08260 SUBJECT, 
HOWEVER, TO THE FOLLOWING SPECIAL CONDITION: 

  

As to any area(s) approved for licensure by this Resolution that is not yet built, no 
alcoholic beverages shall be served until a Certificate of Occupancy has been issued by the 
Construction Official of the City of North Wildwood for such area(s).  

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the effective date of the aforementioned transfer is 
this 16th day of April, 2024. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk, W. Scott Jett, RMC be and he 
hereby is authorized, empowered and directed to endorse said license to reflect the place-to-place 
transfer and denote a similar endorsement on the City’s records.  Further, said City Clerk shall 
forward a certified copy of this Resolution, together with any necessary papers and documents, 
as required, to the Director of the New Jersey Division of Alcoholic Beverage Control.  
********************************************************************************************************************* 

I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of April, 2024. 
 

Dated: April 16, 2024                                         Signed: ___________________________ 
                           W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 

             APPROVED:     
              Patrick Rosenello, Mayor 

 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

#155-24 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

ISSUANCE OF AMUSEMENT GAME LICENSES 
 

WHEREAS, an application has been made by the persons, firm and/or 
corporations set forth on the schedule attached hereto and made part thereof, 
for the issuance of Amusement Game License to be granted by this Issuing 
Authority; and 
 

WHEREAS, all things required by applicant have been complied with, 
this Body is of the opinion that said applicant should be granted and the 
license issued. 

  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of 

the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and the State of New 
Jersey, that the Amusement Game License as set forth in this resolution be 
and is hereby granted for the year 2024, unto the person, firms and/or 
corporation herein recited, for the premises in North Wildwood, New Jersey, 
set opposite their respective name. 

 

NW#/Licensee  Premises     Game #      
 
#25 Brendan Norris  2405 Boardwalk      #1 Basketball Game 
#26 Brendan Norris  2318 Boardwalk      #1 Basketball Game 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OFFERED BY: __________________ SECONDED BY: _______________________ 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY          COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, 
State of New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a 
Resolution adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a 
meeting duly held on the 16th day of April, 2024. 
 

Dated:    April 16, 2024     Signed: ____________________________                               
                 W. Scott Jett, City Clerk   

 
 
 
 
Approved: _______________________ 

       Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
# 154-24 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

APPROVING REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT FOR MONIES PAID TO 
THE NORTH WILDWOOD BEACH PATROL PENSION PLAN 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance #1078, amended by Ordinance #1265 and Ordinance #1390, specifically 
Section III, which authorizes reimbursement requests for monies which have been deducted from employees’ salaries for 
the Pension Fund during the term of their employment, the North Wildwood Beach Patrol Pension Commission has 
authorized, as set forth below, pension reimbursements for the following persons in the amounts listed: 
 

   SYDNEY NEWMAN    $ 667.52 
   MATTHEW MAHON    $1,709.02 
   COURTNEY GABBETT   $727.84 
    
    

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Members of City Council of the City of North 
Wildwood, County of Cape May and State of New Jersey, that the requests of the above listed Lifeguards are approved 
for reimbursement from the North Wildwood Beach Patrol Pension Plan in the amount of $ 3,104.38 for three (3) 
Lifeguards. 
 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, do hereby 
certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City of North 
Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of April, 2024. 
 

Dated:  ____ April 16, 2024____     Signed:   _______________________________ 
         W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
 
 

        APPROVED: ________________________________ 
                  Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 

# 151-24 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance #1078, amended by Ordinance #1265 and Ordinance #1390, the North 
Wildwood Beach Patrol Pension Commission has received requests from three lifeguards terminating their employment 
with the North Wildwood Beach Patrol and petitioning the Commission for the return of monies deducted from their 
salaries; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the North Wildwood Beach Patrol Pension Commission has determined that the following persons 
qualify for pension reimbursements in the amounts listed below: 
      

   SYDNEY NEWMAN    $ 667.52 
   MATTHEW MAHON    $1,709.02 
   COURTNEY GABBETT   $727.84 
 
    

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the North Wildwood Beach Patrol Pension Commission that the 
persons listed below shall be entitled to pension reimbursements in the amounts listed below: 

 
SYDNEY NEWMAN    $ 667.52 

   MATTHEW MAHON    $1,709.02 
   COURTNEY GABBETT   $727.84 

 
 

       NORTH WILDWOOD BEACH PATROL  
       PENSION PLAN COMMISSION 
 
____________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Tom Edwards      Bryan Baker      
 
____________________________________  _____________________________________ 
Ron Simone      David Del Conte       





























 

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

AUTHORIZING RETURN OF BALANCE OF ESCROW DEPOSIT 
 

WHEREAS,  the Application (P-22-7-2) submitted by MW of Wildwood, LLC proposes to subdivide 
the property located at 802 New York Avenue, a/k/a Block 150, Lot 9, in the City’s R-2 Zoning District in order 
to create two (2) 50ft. x 80ft. lots suitable for the development of single-family dwellings as referenced in the 
application documents & subdivision plan.  Only a subdivision plan has been submitted to the Board. 
 

WHEREAS, the application required funds to be escrowed in accordance with the provisions of 
Chapter 276 of the Code of the City of North Wildwood in order to pay for the costs of professional services 
incurred in connection with review of the application; and  
 

WHEREAS, the application was reviewed & approved by the Planning Board & the Board’s 
professionals on March 9, 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, §276-67(E)(2) provides that unused escrow balances may be returned to the Applicant 
within 90 days upon written request by the applicant & as authorized by City Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the amount of funds submitted and escrowed was $2,000.00 & Applicant has made written 
request for return of the unused balance, after Board professionals’ fees have been paid, which amount the 
Chief Financial Officer of the City of North Wildwood has calculated to be $1,204.80. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of Council of the City of North 
Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 

1. All of the allegations of the preamble are incorporated herein by this reference thereto as though the 
same were set forth at length. 

 
2. The Chief Financial Officer be and hereby is authorized to return the unused escrow balance as aforesaid 

to the Applicant. 
 

3. The Chief Financial Officer and such other officials as are necessary be and they hereby are authorized 
to take such actions that are necessary and proper in order to effectuate the purposes and intent of this 
resolution. 

 

********************************************************************************* 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of April, 2024. 

 

      Dated: ___April 16, 2024_______                  Signed: ___________________________ 
                   W. Scott Jett, City Clerk                 

          
                 Approved: __________________________        

                                   Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 
 Motion     Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
152-24 



 

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

AUTHORIZING RETURN OF BALANCE OF ESCROW DEPOSIT 
 

WHEREAS, the Application (Z-23-1-1) submitted by 802 New York Avenue, LLC requests a ‘c’ 
variance relief in order to construct a single-family residential dwelling at the property located at 204 West 8th 
Avenue, North Wildwood, NJ, a/k/a Block 150, Lot 8.  The property is located in the R-2 Zoning District. 
 

WHEREAS, the application required funds to be escrowed in accordance with the provisions of 
Chapter 276 of the Code of the City of North Wildwood in order to pay for the costs of professional services 
incurred in connection with review of the application; and  
 

WHEREAS, the application was reviewed & approved by the Planning Board & the Board’s 
professionals on March 9, 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, §276-67(E)(2) provides that unused escrow balances may be returned to the Applicant 
within 90 days upon written request by the applicant & as authorized by City Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the amount of funds submitted and escrowed was $1,600.00 & Applicant has made written 
request for return of the unused balance, after Board professionals’ fees have been paid, which amount the 
Chief Financial Officer of the City of North Wildwood has calculated to be $852.50. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of Council of the City of North 
Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 

1. All of the allegations of the preamble are incorporated herein by this reference thereto as though the 
same were set forth at length. 

 
2. The Chief Financial Officer be and hereby is authorized to return the unused escrow balance as aforesaid 

to the Applicant. 
 

3. The Chief Financial Officer and such other officials as are necessary be and they hereby are authorized 
to take such actions that are necessary and proper in order to effectuate the purposes and intent of this 
resolution. 

 

********************************************************************************* 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of April, 2024. 

 

      Dated: ___April 16, 2024_______                  Signed: ___________________________ 
                   W. Scott Jett, City Clerk                 

          
                 Approved: __________________________        

                                   Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 
 Motion     Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
153-24 



 City of North Wildwood 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

RESOLUTION 
 
AUTHORIZING APPROVAL OF ITEMS OF REVENUE AND APPROPRIATION 
– 2023 US EDA PUBLIC WORKS & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FACILITIES 

GRANT FOR BOARDWALK RECONSTRUCTION & INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENTS PURSUANT TO N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-87 

 
WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-87 provides that the Director of the Division of Local Government 
Services may approve the insertion of any special item of revenue in the budget of any county or 
municipality when such item shall have been made available by law and the amount was not determined 
at the time of the adoption of the budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Director may also approve the insertion of an item of appropriation for equal amount; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood has received funding in the amount of $1,149,518 in grant 
funds from the 2023 US EDA Public Works & Economic Development Facilities Grant for Boardwalk 
Reconstruction & Infrastructure Improvements.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Council of the City of North 
Wildwood, New Jersey, hereby requests the Director of the Division of Local Government Services to 
approve the insertion of an item of revenue in the budget of the year 2024 in the sum of $1,149,518 which 
is now available as a revenue from: 
 
 Miscellaneous Revenues – section F: 

Special Items of General Revenue Anticipated with Prior Written Consent of the Director 
of Local Government Services – Public and Private Revenues Offset with Appropriations: 

- 2023 US EDA Boardwalk Reconstruction & Infrastructure Improvements 
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the like sum of $1,149,518 is hereby appropriated under the 
caption of: 

General Appropriations 
(A) Operations – Excluded from “CAPS” 

 Public and Private Programs Offset by Revenues: 
-  2023 US EDA Boardwalk Reconstruction & Infrastructure Improvements 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Municipal Clerk will forward one copy of this resolution 
to the Director of Local Government Services. 
************************************************************************************* 
STATE OF NEW JERSEY                      COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood 
at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of April 2024. 
 
Dated  April 16, 2024     Signed____________________________________ 
                                    W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 

 
                          Signed____________________________________ 
                                       Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
 

Resolution # 147-24 



 City of North Wildwood 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
AUTHORIZING APPROVAL OF ITEMS OF REVENUE AND APPROPRIATION 

– 2024 NJ UEZ GRANT FOR THE ADMIN BUDGET PURSUANT TO N.J.S.A. 
40A: 4-87 

 
WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-87 provides that the Director of the Division of Local Government 
Services may approve the insertion of any special item of revenue in the budget of any county or 
municipality when such item shall have been made available by law and the amount was not determined 
at the time of the adoption of the budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Director may also approve the insertion of an item of appropriation for equal amount; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood has received funding in the amount of $36,653 in grant funds 
from the 2024 NJ UEZ for Admin Budget.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Council of the City of North 
Wildwood, New Jersey, hereby requests the Director of the Division of Local Government Services to 
approve the insertion of an item of revenue in the budget of the year 2024 in the sum of $36,653 which is 
now available as a revenue from: 
 
 Miscellaneous Revenues – section F: 

Special Items of General Revenue Anticipated with Prior Written Consent of the Director 
of Local Government Services – Public and Private Revenues Offset with Appropriations: 

- 2024 NJ UEZ Admin Budget 
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the like sum of $ 36,653 is hereby appropriated under the 
caption of: 

General Appropriations 
(A) Operations – Excluded from “CAPS” 

 Public and Private Programs Offset by Revenues: 
-  2024 NJ UEZ Admin Budget  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Municipal Clerk will forward one copy of this resolution 
to the Director of Local Government Services. 
************************************************************************************* 
STATE OF NEW JERSEY         COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of April 2024. 
 
Dated  April 16, 2024     Signed____________________________________ 
                                    W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
 
                          Signed____________________________________ 
                                       Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 

 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 

Resolution # 150-24 



 City of North Wildwood 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

RESOLUTION 
 

AUTHORIZING APPROVAL OF ITEMS OF REVENUE AND APPROPRIATION 
– 2023 OCEAN WIND PRO-NJ GRANTOR TRUST COASTAL RESILIENCY 

GRANT FOR BOAT RAMP & PARK INPROVEMENTS PURSUANT TO N.J.S.A. 
40A: 4-87 

 
WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-87 provides that the Director of the Division of Local Government 
Services may approve the insertion of any special item of revenue in the budget of any county or 
municipality when such item shall have been made available by law and the amount was not determined 
at the time of the adoption of the budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Director may also approve the insertion of an item of appropriation for equal amount,  
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood has received funding in the amount of $507,600 in grant 
funds from the 2023 Ocean Wind Pro-NJ Grantor Trust Coastal Resiliency Grant for Boat Ramp & Park 
Improvements.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Council of the City of North 
Wildwood, New Jersey, hereby requests the Director of the Division of Local Government Services to 
approve the insertion of an item of revenue in the budget of the year 2024 in the sum of $507,600 which 
is now available as a revenue from: 
 
 Miscellaneous Revenues – section F: 

Special Items of General Revenue Anticipated with Prior Written Consent of the Director 
of Local Government Services – Public and Private Revenues Offset with Appropriations: 

- 2023 Ocean Wind Pro-NJ Coastal Resiliency Grant Boat Ramp Park 
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the like sum of $507,600 is hereby appropriated under the 
caption of: 

General Appropriations 
(A) Operations – Excluded from “CAPS” 

 Public and Private Programs Offset by Revenues: 
-  2023 Ocean Wind Pro-NJ Coastal Resiliency Grant Boat Ramp Park 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Municipal Clerk will forward one copy of this resolution 
to the Director of Local Government Services. 
************************************************************************************* 
STATE OF NEW JERSEY                      COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of April 2024. 
 
Dated  April 16, 2024     Signed____________________________________ 
                                    W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
 
                          Signed____________________________________ 
                                       Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 

 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
 

Resolution # 146-24 



 City of North Wildwood 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
AUTHORIZING APPROVAL OF ITEMS OF REVENUE AND APPROPRIATION 

– 2024 NJ DCA BOARDWALK PRESERVATION FUND GRANT FOR 
BOARDWALK RECONSTRUCTION PURSUANT TO N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-87 

 
WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-87 provides that the Director of the Division of Local Government 
Services may approve the insertion of any special item of revenue in the budget of any county or 
municipality when such item shall have been made available by law and the amount was not determined 
at the time of the adoption of the budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Director may also approve the insertion of an item of appropriation for equal amount; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood has received funding in the amount of $10,259,827 in grant 
funds from the 2024 NJ DCA Boardwalk Preservation Fund for Boardwalk Reconstruction.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Council of the City of North 
Wildwood, New Jersey, hereby requests the Director of the Division of Local Government Services to 
approve the insertion of an item of revenue in the budget of the year 2024 in the sum of $10,259,827 
which is now available as a revenue from: 
 
 Miscellaneous Revenues – section F: 

Special Items of General Revenue Anticipated with Prior Written Consent of the Director 
of Local Government Services – Public and Private Revenues Offset with Appropriations: 

- 2024 NJ DCA Boardwalk Reconstruction 
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the like sum of $10,259,827 is hereby appropriated under the 
caption of: 

General Appropriations 
(A) Operations – Excluded from “CAPS” 

 Public and Private Programs Offset by Revenues: 
-  2024 NJ DCA Boardwalk Reconstruction 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Municipal Clerk will forward one copy of this resolution 
to the Director of Local Government Services. 
************************************************************************************* 
STATE OF NEW JERSEY           COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of April 2024. 
 
Dated  April 16, 2024     Signed:____________________________________ 
                                    W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
                          Signed:____________________________________ 
                                       Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
 

Resolution # 148-24 



 City of North Wildwood 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
AUTHORIZING APPROVAL OF ITEMS OF REVENUE AND APPROPRIATION 

– 2023 NJ UCF STEWARDSHIP GRANT FOR CANOPY RESILIENCY 
PURSUANT TO N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-87 

 
WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-87 provides that the Director of the Division of Local Government 
Services may approve the insertion of any special item of revenue in the budget of any county or 
municipality when such item shall have been made available by law and the amount was not determined 
at the time of the adoption of the budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Director may also approve the insertion of an item of appropriation for equal amount; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood has received funding in the amount of $15,000 in grant funds 
from the 2023 NJ UCF for Canopy Resiliency.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Council of the City of North 
Wildwood, New Jersey, hereby requests the Director of the Division of Local Government Services to 
approve the insertion of an item of revenue in the budget of the year 2024 in the sum of $15,000 which is 
now available as a revenue from: 
 
 Miscellaneous Revenues – section F: 

Special Items of General Revenue Anticipated with Prior Written Consent of the Director 
of Local Government Services – Public and Private Revenues Offset with Appropriations: 

- 2023 NJ UCF Canopy Resiliency 
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the like sum of $15,000 is hereby appropriated under the 
caption of: 

General Appropriations 
(A) Operations – Excluded from “CAPS” 

 Public and Private Programs Offset by Revenues: 
-  2023 NJ UCF Canopy Resiliency 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Municipal Clerk will forward one copy of this resolution 
to the Director of Local Government Services. 
************************************************************************************* 
STATE OF NEW JERSEY           COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of April 2024. 
 
Dated  April 16, 2024     Signed____________________________________ 
                                    W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
 
                          Signed____________________________________ 
                                       Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 
 

 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 

Resolution # 149-24 










































































































































